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Design Concept of the Annual Report
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The annual report features various landmarks and the harmonious lives of
citizens as its main creative elements, using blue and green— colors that
symbolise the nature — as the primary tones. It presents a vision of a prosperous
city and community inclusion, reflecting our commitment to upholding the
service belief of the Land Registry. We aim to provide safe and convenient land
registration and search services for the public, promote property market
development, enhance the quality of social life, as well as create a more
prosperous, stable, and sustainable metropolis.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Operating costs:

$443.5 v
m million

ET&ERBRE:
Rate of return on fixed assets:

-12.3%

E SR TES
BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

ERXAEME &8 -
MmN\ No. of land documents delivered
ollollo] \o\ for registration:

373,966
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No. of imaged copies and
photocopies of land records
supplied:

682,464

EFURZEEZHEE :
No. of Owners’ Corporations (OC)
registered:

120
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[v1 | No. of searches of OC documents:

22,602
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BT EEMRE:
No. of searches of
land registers:

5,048,587

ERAMFETMEMRRSIA LRSS
BB s -

Usage of Integrated Registration
Information System (IRIS) Online
Services for search of land registers:

95%

¥ETURFEXHERHAE
No. of OC documents filed:

21,567



ﬁllﬁ S %’b\ ﬂ-
AWARDS AND RECOGNITION
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The Secretary for the Civil Service’s
Commendation Award Scheme 2024

Ms TING Yuet-ling, Biddy, Clerical Officer, was one
of the awardees of the Secretary for the Civil
Service’s Commendation Award 2024 in recognition
of her exceptional performance and dedication to
providing high quality services.

BRrEENE }

Office of The Ombudsman
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FEEEEIE Highlights of the Year

The Secretary fo
Civil Service Voluni®
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The Ombudsman’s Awards 2024

Miss LAU Sze-yan, Land Registration Officer and
Ms KU Wing-yee, Clerical Officer, received the
Ombudsman’s Awards 2024 for Officers of Public
Organisations. Both Miss LAU and Ms KU are
commended for delivering excellent services and
acknowledged for their professionalism, establishing
themselves as a role model in the public service.
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Awards for Land Registry Trading Fund Annual Report 2022/23 ‘

(Lt s Ml BR & 38 B £ 2022/23 F )£ TR 8 BB th B £ & 15 /R 8 2278 -
The Land Registry Trading Fund Annual Report 2022/23 received two awards in different international

competitions:
tt F Competition #% 18 Award  #8 Bl Category
(R (EHEE A G ENRIARF 3 — BT — M/ M,/ B R
2022/23 Vision Awards Gold Award Print-Based Annual Reports —
League of American Government — City/State/National
Communications Professionals
2022/23 Vision Awards
2023/24 % [E Mercury Excellence IR 4% FH—-—W{ER - BEEEHE
Awards Silver Award  Annual Reports — Online: Interactive

Mercury Excellence Awards 2023/24
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caringorganisation Award of 15 Years Plus Caring Organisation Logo

Bt The Hong Kong Council of Social Service awarded the 15 Years Plus
Caring Organisation logo to the Land Registry (LR) in recognition of its

continuous commitment to caring for the community.

[ERBA Z & ¥ FZ&Fsr 8]
T MR 2023FE4 A1 B 220255 3A31B R AIAATE] A
RBABREAAEINRERNBHERERIR -

ERB Manpower Developer Award

The LR was accredited Manpower Developer from 1 April 2023 to 31 March
2025 in recognition of its outstanding achievements in manpower training and

development.
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EVENT HIGHLIGHTS

T 2REEYBER (DHIR) BEH
THEMBER2024F6 A BB EXEHREER
(DA NBEEREZRBEEN AN R R
BREBH LT MEIE -

Visit by the Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education (Sha Tin)

The LR introduced its services and the land registration system in Hong Kong to a group of Business and
Legal Studies students from the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Sha Tin) in June 2024.

EBNEMBSE2BIHEAMERRE

THEMER2024F6 A AT B HEMBEE S8 RHMW
L2BEARBRENEEE NASEAAFERA
AEREREENTHLE  BREAEPEISIOFERD
X EARAREMBEEBRA S -

Visit by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
to the LR Archive

Two guided tours to the LR Archive were arranged for

members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors in June 2024. Various types of manual
land records including original land grant documents dated back to the 1840s and
memorial plans with archival value were introduced.

EREFHHE B IS H2024 F 55 885 |

THEMEEERS TR T B EEN2024FRB5BR | T EBERIBELE-R7A -
RRBEXESCTENSELAETHMAMECHNEE T RABETRMPIET T — RO TIEER -

Junior Achievement (JA) Workplace Immersion 2024

The LR continued its partnership with Junior Achievement Hong Kong to organise the JA Workplace
Immersion 2024 for secondary students to support their future career and life planning. In July, students
from Po Leung Kuk Laws Foundation College were guided by Land Registration Officers as their mentors to
work for one day in various work units.

4 ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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2024 Registrars of Titles Conference (ROTC) cum Canadian Council of Land Titles
Officials Conference (CCLTOC)

The Land Registrar led a delegation to attend the 2024 ROTC cum CCLTOC in Victoria, British Columbia,
Canada in October. Guest speakers shared their knowledge on hot topics such as cyber security and
application of Artificial Intelligence in land registration. Our presentation on privacy and security concerns
from Hong Kong perspective was delivered. It was an insightful event that shed light on our implementation
of the title registration system and digital services.

2024F [t HAMEEREREKAESE

24t AMBR R REREFAESZINCAERMNEHMSETET SRKETAFNEAEE
BERNRREERIRFE N"EFRALHEMNNIELR AERXRNBLERHE BHRAR
REFTHEMREMEIENRARBETNBE LB REREE -

Land Registrars Development Officers’ Conference 2024

The Land Registrars Development Officers Conference 2024 was held in Tasmania, Australia in June
providing a platform for delegates from different jurisdictions to share knowledge and experience in land
registration. During the online conference, our representatives presented the LR’s up-to-date and planned
cyber security policies and measures in enhancing land registration services.

&8 + #h 5 5 % ¥ & € THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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Visit to the National Security Exhibition Gallery

Led by the Land Registrar, our colleagues visited the National Security Exhibition Gallery at the Hong Kong
Museum of History in October 2024, the first thematic gallery dedicated to systematic promotion of national
security education. Guided by the professional docents, our colleagues explored the six zones and valuable
exhibits in the exhibition gallery, gaining a clear and thorough understanding of the importance of national
security to social stability and economic prosperity.
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“Meet the Clients” Sessions on “Common Reasons for Withholding Instruments
from Registration”

Two “Meet the Clients” Sessions were held in November 2024 with participation from around 200
representatives of solicitors’ firms. The sessions shared the common reasons for withholding instruments
from registration, highlighted the key points for avoiding errors in preparing memorials for registration, and
included a sharing on instruments not acceptable for registration. Demonstrations on the use of the
web-based memorial form and briefings on the Property Alert service were also provided.
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MESSAGE FROM THE LAND REGISTRAR
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| am pleased to present the report of the Land Registry Trading
Fund (LRTF) for the financial year ending 31 March 2025.

During the financial year of 2024/25, the Hong Kong property
market experienced notable fluctuations. An early market
recovery was spurred by the Government’s cancellation of
demand-side management measures in February 2024.
However, tight financial conditions and global uncertainties led
to a slowdown in the second and third quarters of 2024. By
September 2024, the situation began to stabilise following
interest rate cuts. Adjustments to the countercyclical macro-
prudential measures for property mortgage loans by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA) in October 2024 further
improved market sentiments. Nevertheless, the new US tariff
policies in February 2025 introduced additional uncertainties to
the global economy, affecting overall trade and investment
outlook, which in turn has dampened the local property
market.
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BR R 8958 Message from the Land Registrar

NAVIGATING FINANCIAL CHALLENGES
WHILE CONTROLLING OPERATING
EXPENSES

Amid a dynamic business environment of uncertainties, we
experienced challenges in meeting our business targets
throughout the financial year. In 2024/25, our revenue and
profit (including interest income) registered a decrease of 4.0%
to $399.4 million and 42.7% to $10.5 million respectively. It
was mainly due to an overall decrease in revenue from
registration of documents, reports on title and e-Alert services.
Consequently, the LRTF recorded a negative overall financial
return on fixed assets of -12.3% in 2024/25, falling short of the
target rate of return on fixed assets of 6% as determined by
the Financial Secretary under the Trading Funds Ordinance
(Cap. 430).

While the revenue income of the LRTF is very susceptible to
the property market condition, we responded swiftly to
tightening control over our operating expenses by reviewing
resource allocation and re-prioritising key areas. Our aim is to
deliver public services more cost-effectively by consolidating
resources such as redeployment of staff, consolidation of
accommodation space, streamlining operational processes
and harnessing technology in provision of land registration and
search services.

TRANSFORMING HONG KONG’S LAND
REGISTRATION SYSTEM

In 2024/25, significant inroads have been made over the
preparation for the legislative exercise to introduce title
registration on newly granted land (new land) first. A change
from the current deeds registration system to a Title
Registration System (TRS), which provides greater certainty in
land ownership and simplifies property transfer procedures,
will enhance the business environment and bring Hong Kong'’s
land registration system in line with those currently adopted in
the Mainland and other jurisdictions.

After extensive consultations with key stakeholders, the
Registration of Titles and Land (Miscellaneous Amendments)
Bill 2025 (Amendment Bill) was finalised and introduced to the
Legislative Council (LegCo) in March 2025. This represents a
significant milestone in reforming Hong Kong’s land registration
system and marks an important step toward adopting the TRS
for new land. The Amendment Bill seeks to amend the Land
Titles Ordinance (Cap. 585) (which has yet to be brought into
operation), the Land Registration Ordinance (Cap. 128), the
LRTF (Cap. 430A) and over 70 pieces of other related
enactments.

If the Amendment Bill is passed by the LegCo by the end of
2025, we will prepare subsidiary legislation and submit to the
LegCo for vetting in 2026. We will also launch publicity and
educational activities with the industry and the public. Our

4 ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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goal is to implement the TRS on new land in the first half
of 2027. We expect that the experience gained from
implementing the TRS for new land will facilitate consensus on
gradual expansion of the TRS to existing land.

Regarding the conversion of existing land currently registered
under the deeds registration system to the new TRS, we have
started research on possible issues in the current 2.9 million
land registers. Based on the findings, we will explore feasible
conversion arrangements in 2026 and engage stakeholders on
the conversion approach as soon as possible. The plan is to
expand the TRS to existing land progressively.

EMBRACING DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION
OF PUBLIC SERVICES

The Chief Executive’s 2024 Policy Address emphasised the
significance of digital government initiatives as a strategic
priority for Hong Kong. This forward-looking approach aims to
modernise Government operations and enhance public service
delivery, positioning Hong Kong as a leading smart city and
strengthening its global competitiveness.

The Land Registry (LR) is committed to driving innovation in
service delivery to better meet customer needs, enhance the
property market development and support digital governance.
We have launched “Tindy”, our Artificial Intelligence-driven
chatbot on the Integrated Registration Information System (IRIS)
Online Services website, to provide interactive support for land
search enquiries.

We have been collaborating with the HKMA and the Digital
Policy Office (DPO) to develop Application Programming
Interface (API) services for financial institutions. By leveraging
the secure Commercial Data Interchange of the HKMA and
Consented Data Exchange Gateway of the DPO, these
institutions can gain timely APl access to our land records and
e-Alert notifications for further charge/mortgage documents.
This initiative exemplifies our unwavering commitment to
enhancing data accessibility and operational efficiency through
strengthened collaboration between the Government and
financial services sector.

Aligned with our smart government strategy, we have
proactively adopted the “iIAM Smart” platform to enhance the
public search capabilities of the IRIS Online Services, thereby
improving user experience and information security. We have
also automated the online application process and streamlined
operations for the Property Alert service with “iAM Smart”
authentication. With a more accessible Property Alert service,
the public may better safeguard their property interest by
receiving e-alerts when an instrument is delivered for
registration against their property. To facilitate the registration
of property transactions, we are also developing electronic
lodgement for registration applications, integrating “iAM Smart”
for identity authentication and digital signatures.

&8+ #h 5 5 % ¥ & € THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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BR R 8958 Message from the Land Registrar

We will continue to dedicate ourselves to driving innovation
across our business practices and service delivery to better
serve our customers and contribute to Hong Kong’s digital
transformation.

ENHANCING PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT
THROUGH SOCIAL MEDIA AND
COLLABORATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

To enhance public and customer engagement, we have
adopted new outreach strategies beyond conventional
communication channels. Following the successful launch of
our Facebook page and the introduction of our mascot, “Bunny
Lanny”, in August and September 2024, we have disseminated
useful information on property conveyancing and fraud
prevention to raise public awareness to safeguard their
property interests. We also make use of this channel to
educate the public about the Government’s initiative to
introduce title registration on new land first and explain how
the TRS differs from the current deeds registration system.
We also extend our efforts to collaborate with stakeholders on
public education initiatives. For example, we collaborated with
the Consumer Council, the HKMA, the Law Society of Hong
Kong and the Estate Agents Authority on a feature article in
CHOICE Magazine issued in May 2025, which provided an
overview of the procedures for purchasing second-hand
properties and offered practical tips for prospective
purchasers.

BUILDING A FUTURE TOGETHER

The Chief Executive's 2024 Policy Address highlighted a
comprehensive strategy to tackle housing challenges in Hong
Kong, focusing on increasing housing supply, enhancing
affordability and improving living conditions. In support of the
Government’s broad land and housing initiatives, the LR is
committed to providing efficient and streamlined land
registration and search services, facilitated by the deepening
of digitalisation and the rollout of the TRS.

Taking this opportunity, | would like to extend my sincere
appreciation to our customers and stakeholders for their
steadfast support throughout the past year. | would also like
to recognise our dedicated staff, whose hard work and
commitment have been the backbone for our achievement.
As we move forward with the implementation of the TRS for
new land and the digitalisation of public services, your
continued support and dedication will be essential. Let's
navigate the challenges of a dynamic business landscape and
the uncertainties that lie ahead, turning them into opportunities
for growth and success.

Ms Joyce TAM, JP

Land Registrar
General Manager, LRTF
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T b5 MRl & The Land Registry at a Glance

Operating on a self-financing basis under commercial
principles, the Land Registry Trading Fund (LRTF) is required
to achieve a return on the average net fixed assets employed
as agreed with the Government. The LRTF’s Annual Report
and the financial statements certified by the Director of Audit
must be tabled in the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region each year.

VISION, MISSION, VALUES AND
FUNCTIONS

Our Vision

To be the best in all that we do.

Our Mission

O To ensure secure, customer friendly land registration and
information services.

O To develop our human resources, information technology
and service environment so as to ensure improvement in
service quality and value to our customers.

O To advocate reform of Hong Kong's land registration
system through introduction of land title registration
system.

Our Values

O Integrity
To customers, partners and colleagues, we observe the
highest ethical standards.

O Excellence
We aim to excel in all that we do.

O Respect
We show respect and trust to our customers, partners

and colleagues.

O Learning
We learn constantly from each other, from our partners,

customers and comparable organisations elsewhere how
to provide better services to the community.
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Our Value to Hong Kong

O
O

O

O

Over half of all Hong Kong families are registered property
owners.

Banks and financial institutions loaned about HK$3,528
billion as at March 2025 against the security of registered
land and property.

Over five million searches of registered information took
place in 2024/25.

Over 135 Government departments and agencies use
the Land Registry’s (LR’s) information for purposes
ranging from property transactions, property
management, planning studies to law enforcement.

Registered information traces back to 1844, providing
essential resources on the economic and social history of
Hong Kong.

Functions

The LR’s main functions are to:

O

administer a land registration system by maintaining a
land register and related land records under the Land
Registration Ordinance (Cap. 128) and Land Registration
Regulations (Cap. 128A);

provide the public with facilities for search of the land
register and other land records;

provide Government departments and agencies with
property information; and

process applications for incorporation of owners and
maintain a register of corporations under the Building
Management Ordinance (Cap. 344).
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MANAGEMENT TEAMS N

2 4 1 3
THEMEERREREE
THE LAND REGISTRAR AND BRANCH HEADS
1 EEELZT JP(LHEFMERER) 3 ZEELEE(BEFEEM)
Ms Joyce TAM, JP (Land Registrar) Mr Eric LEE (Deputy Principal Solicitor)
2 REWMzE (LHMFMELE) 4 PRERZLT (EBHLKE)
(£ HE AZ2025F1H28H) Ms Javy CHAN (Business Manager)

Ms Alice LEUNG (Registry Manager)
(With effect from 28 January 2025)
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DEEDS REGISTRATION AND DEPARTMENTAL SERVICES BRANCH

1 RERLZT(LHFMELRE)
(£ 3% H B 52025461 A28 H)
Ms Alice LEUNG (Registry Manager)
(With effect from 28 January 2025)

2 FRIAR A (Bl e i B A8 18)
(£ 3% H B 5202541 A28 H)
Mr Benson CHAN (Deputy Registry Manager)
(With effect from 28 January 2025)

3 BEXLZE(BLEMELRE)
Ms Delphine MA (Deputy Registry Manager)

4 ERZ2u+ (EMEEWS)
(4 3% H B 5202449 A 26 H)
Ms Cherrie CHUNG (Departmental Secretary)
(With effect from 26 September 2024)

5 ERHLT(SRERKRE)
Ms Emily FOK (Senior Systems Manager)

6

10

11

BEESLT (B THEMELSE)
(£ HH #F2025F1 H2H)

Ms Carmen WONG (Deputy Registry Manager)
(With effect from 2 January 2025)

B0 ZF L+ (Bl ek g &%)
Ms Eva LAU (Deputy Registry Manager)

FEF LT (BRI LHTMELE)
Ms Evian WONG (Deputy Registry Manager)

ERBEE(BRATLIR)
Mr Andrew MAK (Senior Systems Manager)

BRELAE R LHEMELRE)

(43 H 8 5202547 A7 H)

Mr Alvin KWAN (Deputy Registry Manager)
(With effect from 7 July 2025)

HERZL (Bl tmaMELRE)

(£ A8 5202411 H25H)

Miss Cynthia TANG (Deputy Registry Manager)
(With effect from 25 November 2024)
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3 1 7

EREEBH
LEGAL SERVICES BRANCH
1 ZEELE (B FEEM) 4 ERELE(RREAE)

Mr Eric LEE (Deputy Principal Solicitor) Mr David IP (Senior Saolicitor)
2 EEFZL(BIEEFEAM) 5 BEHEXE(RREAM)

(£ H A A20256F3H31H) Mr Wesley LUK (Senior Solicitor)

Ms Joyce WONG (Assistant Principal Solicitor)

(With effect from 31 March 2025) 6 ZTHEELZL(SHRER)

Ms Shirley LEE (Senior Solicitor)
3 %L (B REM)
Mr Stanley HUI (Senior Solicitor) 7 MR Z £ (=R ERD)
Miss Tracy LAM (Senior Solicitor)
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FINANCIAL SERVICES BRANCH

1 BRERZ T (EBHLERE)
Ms Javy CHAN (Business Manager)

2 MFEzL (FIEBERE)
Ms Candy HO (Deputy Business Manager)

T b5 MR il & The Land Registry at a Glance

3 HEH@E Xzt (LML)
Ms Ella TSOI (Deputy Registry Manager)
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& [a) % i 5 f Moving towards Title Registration

The present land registration system in Hong Kong is a deeds
registration system operating under the Land Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 128) (LRO), which governs the priority of
registered instruments in the land register but gives no
guarantee of title to land.

After the enactment of the Land Titles Ordinance (Cap. 585)
(LTO) in 2004, the LTO Steering Committee (LTOSC) and the
LTO Review Committee (LTORC), comprising representatives
of key stakeholders, were set up to steer and carry out the
review of the LTO before its commencement, to ensure its
smooth implementation.

The Title Registration Education Committee (TREC) was also
set up to steer and oversee the planning and implementation
of publicity and professional education programmes to pave
way for the introduction of title registration. The membership
lists of the LTOSC, LTORC and TREC are at Annexes Il (d), (e)
and (f) respectively.

While consensus on the mechanism for converting existing
land under the LRO to registered land under the LTO has yet
to be reached among key stakeholders, the Government is
actively pursuing the proposal of implementing title registration
on newly granted land first (“new land first” proposal) with
support from key stakeholders. General support from the
Legislative Council’s (LegCo) Panel on Development has also
been obtained. Generally speaking, the “new land first”
proposal covers land granted by the Government on or after
the commencement date of the LTO.

Implementation of the “new land first” proposal will facilitate
the Government and key stakeholders to further deliberate and
reach a consensus on the mechanism for conversion of
existing land at a later stage, in the light of operational
experience gained.

To this end, the Registration of Titles and Land (Miscellaneous
Amendments) Bill 2025 (Amendment Bill) was introduced into
the LegCo in March 2025. The Amendment Bill has proposed
to amend the LTO, LRO and over 70 pieces of other related
enactments.
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A LegCo Bills Committee has been formed to scrutinise the
provisions of the Amendment Bill. If the Amendment Bill is

passed by the end of 2025, title registration on new land is
expected to come into operation in the first half of 2027.
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In parallel, we have kick-started internal research to assess the
scope and types of problematic land registers in the existing 2.9
million land registers. Based on the data gathered on existing
land with title problems, the Government plans to explore
feasible conversion arrangements in 2026 and engage
stakeholders on the conversion approach as soon as possible,
with a view to expansion of the scope of LTO implementation
to existing land progressively.

At the same time, we have continued to engage key
stakeholders and industry practitioners. Meetings of LTOSC
and TREC were held in January 2025 to update key
stakeholders on the latest developments and the
implementation plan, and to seek their input on issues relating
to publicity and professional education.
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& [3) % i 5 f Moving towards Title Registration

Two briefing sessions on the Amendment Bill were held in
March 2025. Around 200 representatives from various
stakeholders attended the briefings. To help industry
practitioners get familiarised with the new system, two more
briefings were held in April and May 2025 for around 450
participants from members of the Law Society of Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Land Registry (LR) highly values and strives to uphold our
commitment to social responsibility.  Our dedication is
demonstrated through our efforts across five main areas.

Supporting Charity and Voluntary Activities

Our staff are dedicated to nurturing a compassionate and
inclusive community through our active participation in charity
and voluntary activities.

In addition to our staff taking part in various charity events
organised by the Community Chest, including the Green Low
Carbon Day, Dress Casual Day and Skip Lunch Day, our
volunteer team has proactively participated in a wide variety of
voluntary services and charity activities, providing warm
support to various community groups in need.

From participating a Golf Experience Day at the Jockey Club
Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course to co-organising a Sports
Fun Day with the Society of Boys’ Centres Chak Yan Centre
School, we have created enriching recreational opportunities
for participating children and youth.

We remain dedicated to supporting food assistance
programmes, such as preparing and distributing meal boxes
at Gingko House restaurants and collecting surplus food
donated by our staff. In collaboration with the Care teams, our
volunteers extended their outreach by visiting ethnic minority
families in Yau Tsim Mong and residents in need in Tsuen
Wan. As part of our commitment to elderly care, our
volunteers conducted home visits and distributed gift bags to
the elderly and their carers in Shek Kip Mei, Tuen Mun and Tai
Po. In addition, we provided Chinese acupressure massage
services for seniors and their carers in Kwun Tong, while
helping the elderly residents in the Southern District enhance
their e-health literacy.

We also actively participated in fundraising charity initiatives,
including charity book sales, the Life Express Charity Walk
2024, and the Po Leung Kuk Charity Walk 2025, further
reinforcing our commitment to building a caring and
harmonious society.
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Golf Experience Day for children at the Jockey Club Kau Sai
Chau Public Golf Course in May 2024.
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Blessing gift bags distribution
to residents in celebration of
the 75th Anniversary of the
Founding of the People’s
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Ethnic minority families visit in the Yau Tsim @ =
Mong district in July 2024.
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Land Registry Volunteer Team
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Surplus food donation activity from December
2024 to January 2025.
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In Association with The Clearwater

A
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Chinese acupressure massage service for the
elderly in June and September 2024.

REIREEZ 172024
Life Express Charity Walk 2024.

RETEHEREERIIRE Promoting Equal Opportunities and Accessibility

BHBREBITHEEE BAOBERE We maintain a steadfast dedication to social responsibility,
R BR - KERMRERD B striving to eliminate employment discrimination related to sex,
EEE TEBRREREMEEINTSE disability, family status and race, and actively promoting equal
e o opportunities for all staff members.
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In 2024/25, we had 23 staff members with disabilities,
representing 5% of the total strength of the LR. We provided
necessary technical aids to support staff members with
disabilities in performing their duties.

We are also committed to providing barrier-free facilities for
members of the public. Designated Access Officers and
Assistant Access Officers are available to offer assistance to
people in need. Regular reviews were conducted to ensure
the accessibility of our facilities, and seminars and training
were arranged for our Access Officers, Assistant Access
Officers and venue-based staff members periodically. In
February 2025, we organised for our staff an experience
sharing session by a non-government organisation, where
persons with different types of impairment shared their
experiences and/or difficulties in their daily life, so as to
enhance our staff's awareness and understanding of the
needs of persons with disabilities.
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Given our continuous efforts, the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service has included our Customer Centre on 19/F of the
Queensway Government Offices (QGO) in the List of Barrier-
free Companies/Organisations. This recognition highlights our
continued dedication to creating an inclusive and
accommodating environment for our staff and members of the
public.

We continued to provide placement opportunities for people in
need through participating in the Civil Service Bureau's
Internship Scheme for Students with Disabilities in 2024. Four
interns were recruited to help in the Search and Departmental
Services Division and General Support Services Division to
provide general administrative and clerical support to the
offices. Experienced mentors were designated to provide
prompt assistance and support to the interns to facilitate them
in carrying out the assigned tasks.

To provide more job opportunities for the socially
disadvantaged groups, we took a proactive step by inviting
social enterprises to participate in bidding our office cleansing
service contracts.
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Upholding Occupational Health Care for Employees

We attach great importance to the occupational safety and
health of our employees. We set up a departmental Safety
Management Committee to formulate and implement
departmental policy on occupational safety and health. We
have established thorough guidelines and procedures on
occupational safety and equipped our staff with ergonomic
office furniture and equipment to promote occupational health.
Besides, routine inspections are conducted to ensure that the
workplace remains free from safety hazards.

In 2024/25, a total of 36 seminars/workshops on subjects
such as health hints on the use of computer, prevention of
upper and lower limb disorders, prevention of Musculoskeletal
Disorders, occupational stress and stress management were
provided to our staff. We also offered counselling services
through external specialists to support staff in addressing their
work-related or personal issues, demonstrating our
commitment to safeguarding the comprehensive well-being of
our employees.

To maintain staff’'s awareness of work safety, mental well-
being and physical fitness, we regularly share valuable
information and tips through our e-Staff Magazine. The Staff
Recreation Club also promotes physical fitness and well-being
by subsidising staff’s participation in sports activities such as
the Construction Industry Happy Run 2025 organised by the
Construction Industry Council and the Standard Chartered
Hong Kong Marathon 2025.

V,

In line with our commitment to providing a comfortable and
safe workplace, we continued our efforts in 2024/25 to sustain
a pleasant office environment by adding greenery elements
and carrying out necessary fitting out work.

In addition, since 2003, we have participated in the Indoor Air
Quality Certification Scheme organised by the Environmental
Protection Department. In 2024, our office at One Kowloon,
Kowloon Bay obtained the “Excellent” Class, while all other
offices attained the “Good” Class. To create a breastfeeding
friendly environment, we made available lactation facilities for
female staff members who wish to continue breastfeeding
upon returning from maternity leave.
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Thriving for Team Work

Staff resources are a valuable asset to us. To encourage
effective  communication and collaboration between
management and staff, Departmental Consultative Committee
meetings are held about once every quarter. This facilitates
open discussions on various matters affecting the well-being
of our staff. Besides, the LR Staff Suggestions Committee
provides an effective avenue for all staff to submit suggestions
which aimed at streamlining operations and enhancing work
efficiency within the department. The collaborative team
efforts lead to enhancement in productivity.

In addition, the LR maintains a Knowledge Management
System to facilitate systematic management and sharing of
knowledge across the department. With over 10,000
documents comprising sample cases, reference and training
materials for various services contained in the database, the
system serves as a comprehensive and easily accessible tool
for our staff to use in enhancing their work effectiveness in
daily operation.

Our Performance Incentive Scheme is designed to motivate
employees, inculcate a customer service culture and boost
productivity. A Best Frontline Staff Award is also established
to commend the exemplary performance of our frontline staff.

Sustaining Environmental Awareness

To continuously promote green management and ensure that
our business and daily operations are conducted in an
environmentally responsible manner, we have implemented
the following measures:

O set out a clear environmental policy with key areas for
actions;

promulgated green housekeeping guidelines;

conducted regular environmental audit and surprise
inspections at our offices;

o OO0

continued our drive in 4-Rs (i.e. reduce, reuse, recycle
and replace) and efficient use of energy and resources;

adopted green procurement and required the adoption of

environment conservation practices by office cleaning
contractor;

promoted environmental awareness among staff through
regular internal communication;

reduced and recycled the use of paper as far as
practicable;

installed lighting motion sensors in office premises;

Lo B o N © BN © B ©

incorporated the greening concept in office design;
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O prepared to implement the Government’s Electronic
Record Keeping System to introduce filing of electronic
records, instead of paper-based records; and

O continued to explore ways to reduce paper consumption
as a whole through developing electronic submission
means to facilitate customers in acquiring our services,
such as e-lodgement and e-memorial form, and
streamlining workflows in our daily operation.

The Controlling Officer’'s Environmental Report 2024 with
detailed environmental performance is available on the LR’s
website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Governance Framework

The LR strives to achieve the best in corporate governance.
We have established performance standards on accountability,
integrity and transparency.

Accountability

The LR is accountable to the Development Bureau and the
Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau for its business
and financial performance respectively. A medium range
corporate-cum-annual business plan is submitted to the two
Bureaux for approval every year. The corporate plan sets out
the blueprint for the department’s development in the next five
years, while the business plan serves as the basis for
evaluating our annual performance.

Integrity

Under the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430) (TFO), we have
the flexibility to respond to service needs and enhance
operational efficiency through autonomy in capital investment
and the use of resources. Underpinning this flexibility is the
duty to uphold integrity in discharging our responsibilities. LR
staff conduct daily business in a proper manner in compliance
with departmental guidelines and the relevant Government
rules and regulations. The Registry Manager acts as the
Ethics Officer of the LR, overseeing integrity management of
the department. In addition to organising training courses and
workshops, relevant guidelines and circulars on integrity
management are promulgated and re-circulated to staff
regularly to enhance awareness and promote ethical conduct.

Transparency

The LR’s operation is guided by the principle of transparency.
As provided under the TFO, the Trading Fund’s annual report
together with the financial statements audited by the Director
of Audit is required to be tabled in the Legislative Council each
year. To help keep the public apprised of our work and the
situation in the property market, we publish statistics on land
registration and search on a monthly basis.

&8+ #h 5 5 % ¥ & € THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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Performance Pledges

As part of our continuing commitment to improving the quality
and efficiency of services, we have reviewed our performance
pledges annually since the establishment of the Trading Fund
in 1993.

In 2024/25, we exceeded all the targets set in our performance
pledges. In particular, we improved the service standard (from
30 to 25 working days) and performance target (from 90% to
95%) for registration of owners’ corporations. Annex | (a) sets
out the pledges and our actual performance for the year.

In the coming year, we will continue to enhance the service
standard and performance target for registration of owners’
corporations and dedicate effort to improve our performance
target on amendment of registered data (complicated case).
The new set of performance pledges for 2025/26 is at Annex | (b).

Customer Engagement

Efficient Customer Support Services

We strive for excellence and professionalism in customer
service delivery. To foster a customer-oriented culture in
service delivery, we provide interactive customer support
services through various channels such as a round-the-clock
customer service hotline in collaboration with 1823, managed
by Digital Policy Office, as well as a dedicated one-stop
customer service counter at our Customer Centre at the QGO,
along with service points at the New Territories Search Offices
in Tai Po, Yuen Long and Tsuen Wan.

Dedicated Customer Liaison Platforms

We also maintain close liaison with our business partners,
including the Law Society of Hong Kong, as well as other
private and public sector customers, to collect their views on
our services through dedicated customer liaison platforms.

The long-established LR Joint Standing Committee (LRJSC),
comprising the Land Registrar, the senior management team
and representatives of the Law Society of Hong Kong, meets
regularly to discuss and exchange views on land registration
matters and our services provided to legal practitioners.

THEMEREEHEES
LR Joint Standing Committee
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The LR also maintains two Customer Liaison Groups (CLGS)
for private and public sectors to update customers on the
department’s latest initiatives, services and procedures, to
facilitate exchange of views on operational and service delivery
issues, and to respond to customers’ feedback. The private
sector group comprises representatives from the legal
community, professional bodies and trade associations while
the public sector group comprises representatives from the
Government departments and public bodies.

"

-
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W

¥ TR
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* b

3 S L
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| .

The membership lists of the LRJSC and CLGs are at Annexes
Il (@), (b) and (c) respectively.

Recognised Customer Feedback

We appreciate customer feedback and consistently engage
with customers through multiple channels to secure the
delivery of quality service. In 2024/25, we continued to
achieve a high customer satisfaction rate, with “Very Satisfied”
and “Satisfied” ratings on comment cards totalling 95.7%. 57
commendations were received through our customer service
hotline, the LR’s website, comment cards, letters and emails
to recognise our efforts in upholding service quality.
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Customer-oriented Complaint Management System

We maintain a robust complaint management system for
public scrutiny and addressing complaints. 15 complaints
were received by us directly or through referrals from other
Government offices. All relevant complaints were promptly
addressed and fully responded to.

Stronger Customer Connection through Social Media
and Mascot

The LR launched an official Facebook page in August 2024 in
celebration of the 31st Anniversary of the Land Registry
Trading Fund. The page aims to share information of our
services and recent updates with our customers and members
of the public. It also serves as a channel of public education
to provide basic knowledge about the property conveyancing
process, disseminate anti-fraud messages and introduce
concepts underlying the title registration system to

P be implemented.

The LR’s mascot “Bunny Lanny” [ % % |, born on

the Mid-autumn Festival in September 2024, is also

our pioneer in outreach to the community and

communication with the public. The Chinese name of

our mascot carries the characters of [H | and [%],

which phonetically resembles the LR’s informal name of [ B £ B |
that many people are familiar with.
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REGISTRATION OF LAND DOCUMENTS

Documents affecting land are delivered to our Customer
Centre at the Queensway Government Offices (QGO) for
registration.

In 2024/25, 373,966 land documents were delivered for
registration, representing an increase of 2.7% when compared
with 2023/24.

EREM L4 EH
NO. OF LAND DOCUMENTS DELIVERED FOR REGISTRATION
Eqs
No.
600,000 —
531,475
500,000
449,266
416,673
400,000 364,265 373,966
300,000
200,000
100,000
0 FE
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Year

$WH§Z§'JE’J£%$U¢F¢EEIJ3?‘H§ g
EQd BERN. i‘z:z?%/ﬁﬁ&ﬁ@
Eﬁ?ﬁ%%/ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂ 1A 2 F W B S a2
#973.6% °

Major types of documents received included sale and
purchase agreements (SPAs), assignments, mortgages/legal
charges and receipts/discharges/releases which collectively
accounted for 73.6% of all documents received during the
year.
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2024/25 1F [E 3% 32 5% M 89 1 3t ST 44 58 B
DISTRIBUTION OF LAND DOCUMENTS LODGED FOR REGISTRATION IN 2024/25

kY

Leases/Tenancy Agreements

3,217 (0.8%)

"B EH
Mortgages/Legal Charges

55,663 (14.9%)

FRRRIRIS,E

Receipts/Discharges/Releases

55,674 (14.9%)
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Others

95,735 (25.6%)

HERZN

Assignments

90,020 (24.1%)

BEEAH
Sale and Purchase Agreements

73,657 (19.7%)

Among the SPAs of all building units delivered for registration
in 2024/25, the number of SPAs of residential units and their
total consideration were 55,469 (+43% from previous year)
and $465,977 million (+34.6% from previous year) respectively.
The number of these agreements is generally regarded as a
key indicator of the level of activity in the property market.

EXEMPNEEBFREESHNRENEH

NO. AND CONSIDERATION OF SALE AND PURCHASE AGREEMENTS OF
RESIDENTIAL UNITS DELIVERED FOR REGISTRATION

465,977

346,220

49,017 55,469

38,802

¢ ¢ o——e —  ©® ..

700,000 -~ 627313 667,700
600,000 -
500,000 -
400,000
300,000
200,000 -
100,000 F 67,807 66,222
.
2020/21 2021/22
-o-

id: LS BRFUEIEREEEHEE LARB2ERERHEEEHAES

fEmI B EEE -

Year

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

O &8 (B8ET)

Consideration (HK$ million)

SETHEESESR RIFAFREMLEERGIH

Note: The statistics do not include sales of units under the Home Ownership Scheme, the Private Sector Participation Scheme and the
Tenants Purchase Scheme, etc. unless the premium of the unit concerned has been paid after the sale restriction period.

&8+ #h 5 5 % ¥ & € THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG



# }5 0 B8 Business Review

E2024/25F 8 REZHEEEFHR The majority of the transactions in residential units in 2024/25
S22 EENF5008 £1,0008 BT .2 fell within the consideration range of five to ten million Hong

e FRAXH BN FI008 £5008 Kong dollars. There was a notable increase in transactions
BL2ENETEEFRS5@BEEMN- with consideration of three to five million Hong Kong dollars in
2024/25.

BRERSENEERFREEANRHE

NO. OF SALE AND PURCHASE AGREEMENTS OF
RESIDENTIAL UNITS BY RANGE OF CONSIDERATION

REX

No.
30,000
25,000
20,000 -
15,000
10,000 -

5,000
0
i 122 2% L3 3EDLHSE 5Z 10 10ZE 45820 20E 30 308 £
Less than 1 1 to less than 2 2tolessthan 3 3toless than 5 5tolessthan 10  10tolessthan 20 20 to less than 30 30 or over
+7H¥E (A&8%IT) Range of Consideration (HKS$ million)
@ 202223 @ 202324 @ 2024/25

cHEIE
Range of Consideration 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
(B&HBL)
(HK$ million) R #No. % =ENo. V2l = E{No.
i Less than 1 221 0.5 201 0.5 254
12D R2 1 1o less than 2 786 1.6 699 1.8 1,162
2= L3 2 to less than 3 1,395 2.8 2,343 6.1 5,072
3& L5 3 to less than 5 11,185 22.8 10,835 27.9 17,227
5% LR 10 5 to less than 10 26,254 53.6 18,122 46.7 21,909
10& 11220 10 to less than 20 7,261 14.8 4,856 12.5 6,901
20& 130 20 to less than 30 947 1.9 853 2.2 1,338
308k A E 30 or over 968 2.0 893 2.3 1,606
1@E Total 49,017 100.0 38,802 100.0 ML

A RRIEOEAAIBEE @RBEEOE D ERFRAMAGENFER100%
Note: Figures in percentage for individual items may not add up to 100% due to rounding.
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SEARCH SERVICES

Land records are kept by the Land Registry (LR) to prevent
secret and fraudulent conveyances, and to provide means
whereby the title to real and immovable property may be easily
traced and ascertained.

In 2024/25, the total number of searches of land registers and
supply of imaged copies and photocopies of land records
were 5,048,587 (+2.2% from previous year) and 682,464
(-2.6% from previous year) respectively.

VRBREERIAR ARG

NO. OF SEARCHES OF LAND REGISTERS AND IMAGED COPIES AND
PHOTOCOPIES OF LAND RECORDS SUPPLIED

Eg=|
No.
7:000.000 7 6,042,078
2.792,636 @ 5,498,956
6,000,000 y y
4,939,798 5,048,587
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
805,550 920,408 822,229 700,594 682,464
1,000,000 ® —@— — T — o o
| | | | J ﬂEE
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Year
BB BT AR SRR Ea 20
P o TR LA SR R IR IR MR IR

Searches of Land Registers

AEFEBIGAAMEMEZS A LR
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DETEM o E2024/25FF » BB
FPHE R £ H15381 KEiR4E
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R KR TEAMEENHAEME
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Imaged Copies and Photocopies of Land Records Supplied

Our Integrated Registration Information System (IRIS) Online
Services at www.iris.gov.hk is a user-friendly and convenient
platform for online search of land records. 95% of searches of
land registers in the year of 2024/25 were conducted online.
The public can conduct searches on either an ad hoc or a
subscription basis. The number of subscribers reached 1,538
during 2024/25. Counter search service is available at our
Customer Centre at the QGO and the New Territories Search
Offices in Tai Po, Yuen Long and Tsuen Wan.
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EHTHETMRE
NO. OF SEARCHES OF LAND REGISTERS
EfRE
No. of Searches
7,000,000 6,042,078
2,792,636 @ 5,498,956
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The LR publishes the Street Index (Sl) and the New Territories
Lot/Address Cross Reference Table (CRT) annually to facilitate
search of land records. Online versions of the Sl and the CRT
are available for free browsing on the LR’s website or through
the hyperlink on the IRIS Online Services website. As at 31
March 2025, over 27,500 visits to the online versions of the SI
and the CRT released on 30 April 2024 were recorded.

OWNERS’ CORPORATION SERVICES

It has been the Government’s policy to encourage owners to
form Owners’ Corporations (OCs) for better building
management under the Building Management Ordinance (Cap.
344) (BMO). Under the BMO, the LR is responsible for
registration of OCs and provision of filing and search services
for OC records. In 2024/25, 120 new OCs were registered,
bringing the total number of OCs to 11,574. During the same
period, 21,567 OC documents were filed and 22,602 OC
documents were searched.
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Banners displayed at the prominent Government
venues.

PROPERTY ALERT

Launched in January 2019, Property Alert is a subscription
service that assists property owners in safeguarding their land
interests from fraud by monitoring the land registers of their
properties. Subscribers receive an email notification and Short
Message Service (SMS) reminder when an instrument is
delivered for registration against their property.

The LR participated in the SMS Sender Registration Scheme
in June 2024 launched by the Office of the Communications
Authority. All SMS reminders sent by the LR upon issuance of
Property Alert notifications would be sent to subscribers’
designated Hong Kong mobile phone number under the
Registered SMS Sender ID “#LandReg”, thereby enhancing
protection against fraudulent SMS.

During 2024/25, over 94% of subscription orders received
were for one-off subscription enabling the alert service for a
property to remain valid until change of ownership. To
enhance the payment convenience, an additional payment
method via the Faster Payment System (FPS) was introduced
in June 2024. To automate the internal processing of
applications, the LR implemented e-processing for online
applications authenticated through iAM Smart in October
2024. The proportion of applications for subscription of
Property Alert services submitted via iAM Smart increased
from 28% in 2023/24 to 33.5% in 2024/25. We will continue
to enhance the service as part of the digital government
initiative.

To sustain the momentum of publicity, we continued to promote
the service through various channels, including the social
media platforms, to raise public awareness of the Property
Alert service.

NSRS

St Vig“antwit Your Praperty,
Keep Frav
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Service information published in District Office’s Building
Management Newsletter for distribution to residents, owners’
committees, etc. in the district.

|

F————

e ]

Yom i g et Ot
| D) oo

4 % ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 41



42

# }5 0 & Business Review

ERTHBEMETES
B 15

K BE 2017 52 A #E ) H IR 1T X &
fFI) (551658 ) ™ & 3B ] 18 (BD #5 p2
RIT- BRBEERRTEEIFRR
BRI B E TR - AB b
FAMEERBEFRNEERR - R
ARBEXINRAE NI BEERS
% SEEARNYMEEBRMRL/
RBXHRXNAEHEEME  FE
Y B A gz B A9 B2 R ERLE. o UE TR AR A%
RERBA B -

BEETE TREBEN2021F2A 2 EKETT
% ROUBBAUEZE2MAEDLER
FE2ERIREHEE - ERIFER
RIEH—EH  NEE AR HIEHE
HEARXNERYE EAZEKET
RN IR o

1 # 8 T BUT 83

THEME 2 )X FRRAR LA
B — K EF B RS

[REEMEMARLR

(4 2 5 3R 0 48 E FR RS R 1R 4
B LR EN—hRE TR
Fh-

KR E2024/25F E Al F A M E
ARG WM ERBELE TN ZEEE
B

e sprameie | L 8E

OGP reafsi@ls UK
EREPUAERBENER  UE

s ATEASZHDBEAMG
55 15 U W T B2 - DA BN 28 R FE B A
BRFLE o

HEBHIFL

TR BE2024 FHE R E)F HEH
BReRiEmESHBEBLERE S8 A
THESHBRMEZE ZBTEE -
LAINREB B 85 -

E-ALERT SERVICE FOR AUTHORIZED
INSTITUTIONS

The LR launched the e-Alert Service for Authorized Institutions
(Als) (i.e. licensed banks, restricted licence banks and deposit-
taking companies) under the Banking Ordinance (Cap. 155) in
February 2017. This service aims to help the Als better
manage credit risks in mortgage lending. With consent from
the property owners, the Als can subscribe to the service and
receive notifications from the LR when further charge/
mortgage documents in respect of the properties mortgaged
to the Als are lodged for registration with the LR. The service
has been well received by the Als.

Following the full implementation of the e-Channel in February
2021, the Als can enjoy online application submissions with
greater security and convenience. As part of our ongoing
service enhancement, the LR launched the Application
Programming Interface (API) service for the Als as an additional
means to receive e-Alert notifications.

NEW E-GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

The LR fully supports exploring new technology and
developing new generation of e-Government services.

Integrated Registration Information System

The Integrated Registration Information System (IRIS) Online
Services is a one-stop electronic service platform providing
search services for land records.

The LR implemented the following major enhancements to the
IRIS Online Services in 2024/25:

O introduced FPS payment option;

0 provided an online pop-up survey to collect customer
feedback on our services; and

O introduced a new feature for masking the personal
identification document numbers of searchers to enhance
protection of personal data privacy.

Drive towards Digitalisation

As stated in the Chief Executive’s 2024 Policy Address, the
Government will advance the digitalisation of its services by
utilising Artificial Intelligence (Al) and increasing the openness
and sharing of government data with a view to expediting the
growth of the digital economy.
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The LR has been proactively driving innovation in service
delivery to meet customer needs and support
Need Help? | digital government initiatives. To enhance
N customer service with interactive support for
searchers, our Chatbot “Tindy” was introduced to
the IRIS Online Services website to answer general
enquiries on land search service by using Al
technology in April 2025.

The LR has also been collaborating with the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (HKMA) and the Digital Policy Office (DPO)
to develop API services for Als under the Banking Ordinance
(Cap. 155) through the secure digital gateway of the
Commercial Data Interchange (CDI) of the HKMA and the
Consented Data Exchange Gateway (CDEG) of the DPO,
which were launched in March and April 2025. By connecting
to the LR via the CDI-CDEG linkage and API, Als may access
e-Alert notifications for further charge/mortgage documents
and search land and ownership information respectively. This
initiative demonstrates our commitment to enhancing data
accessibility and increasing efficiency between the Government
and financial sector. We will continue to keep in view Als’
feedback to identify room for service enhancements.
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The API service was partnered with the HKMA, the Hong Kong Association of Banks and the banking industry and jointly spearheaded
through a Task Force. A Task Force Meeting was held in March 2025 to prepare for the service launch.

FEESFABBIEE

T SR & F B F R EUR T E1 )
ERIFARBIEFE | BaEFMaME
MERBEHRAERBENEES - A#
NBATREFA - FEZBEEIE
BB EERAREE IMAHE
PREMEIES - WA T 8B SCEM
HERE - ZFEHBEET ARHKE
MiREERMME - 2025F 2027 F E
HEESRBIEBETS R EEEETE
ELHEAEREHARER -

The Consolidated Annual Open Data Plan

The annual open data plan of the LR sets out datasets relating
to statistics of registration and search services. These
datasets are made available for free public use through the
Open Data Portal. The annual spatial data plan provides geo-
tagged datasets along with metadata documents and data
specifications in open and machine-readable formats. The
datasets provide useful materials for technology research and
innovation. The consolidated open data plan and spatial data
plan for 2025-2027 is available on the LR’s website for public
access.
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871 EX & 12 Financial Management

FINANCIAL OBJECTIVES

In accordance with the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430),
the Land Registry Trading Fund (LRTF) pursues clearly defined
financial objectives as follows:

O meeting expenses incurred in the provision of services to
the public and Government departments out of the
income of the trading fund, taking one year with another;
and

O achieving a reasonable return, as determined by the
Financial Secretary, on the fixed assets employed.

ACTUAL PERFORMANCE

In comparison to 2023/24, revenue for the latest period
decreased by $16.5 million (-4.0%) to $399.4 million, mainly
due to decline in revenue from registration of documents,
reports on title and e-Alert services. Operating costs
decreased by $8.6 million (-1.9%) to $443.5 million, primarily
due to a decrease in depreciation and amortisation as well as
general operating expenses.
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2024/25F E W A 2 1
ANALYSIS OF REVENUE 2024/25
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2024/25F EEE R A2 T
ANALYSIS OF OPERATING COSTS 2024/25

BTEH
Staff costs
HeRIRE A 75.5%
Rental and

related charges

4.2%

—REFRAIREMER
General operating expenses
and other costs

4.7%

EREE
Depreciation and
amortisation

5.7%

ERBRBAX

Computer service charges

9.9%

RE FORECAST

THFMEEEESHWANEEE The LRTF’s revenue and return on fixed assets depend mainly
ELRBEFTEFANGEM &M - 17 on the business volume of registration, search, copying,
HEIAR -  EERERBLETFIRTR reports on title and e-Alert services, which is subject to
BHNEE MEBEEEXINYED performance of the property market and other relevant factors.
BMEMBRRETE BRMSEE We will continue to exercise strict control on costs.
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Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Legislative Council

Opinion

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial
statements of the Land Registry Trading Fund set out on
pages 53 to 85, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to

the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Land Registry Trading Fund as at
31 March 2025, and of its results of operations and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the manner provided in section 7(4) of the
Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section 7(5) of the
Trading Funds Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing
standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of my report. | am
independent of the Land Registry Trading Fund in accordance
with those standards, and | have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with those standards. | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Other information

The General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund is
responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the Land Registry
Trading Fund’s 2024-25 Annual Report, other than the
financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and | do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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E 51 B R ¥R 5 Report of the Director of Audit

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, |
am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the General Manager, Land
Registry Trading Fund for the financial statements

The General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund is
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the HKICPA and section 7(4) of the
Trading Funds Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Manager,
Land Registry Trading Fund is responsible for assessing the
Land Registry Trading Fund’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Audit
Commission auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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ERBEEFEBFSTEAETETNR As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit Commission
B ZeEREXHBTREEE auditing standards, | exercise professional judgment and
BEREE - KITE maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:
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identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Land
Registry Trading Fund’s internal control;

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the General Manager, Land
Registry Trading Fund;

conclude on the appropriateness of the General
Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Land Registry Trading Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Land Registry Trading Fund to cease to continue as a
going concern; and

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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3+ E BRI S Report of the Director of Audit

| communicate with the General Manager, Land Registry
Trading Fund regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that |
identify during my audit.

Terry Mok
Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

Audit Commission

6th Floor, High Block
Queensway Government Offices
66 Queensway, Hong Kong

22 September 2025
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FHHRER

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BHE_T_hAF=-A=+—HI&FE for the year ended 31 March 2025

(AT L RL5) 7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B &F

Note 2025 2024
KEEFEH2WA Revenue from contracts with customers 4 399,452 415,929
BEK AR Operating costs 5 (443,453) (452,023)
ErBE Loss from operations (44,001) (36,094)
H U A Other income 6 54,493 54,398
FEEF Profit for the year 10,492 18,304
H 2= Other comprehensive income - -
FEHA#ZTEWKE Total comprehensive income for the year 10,492 18,304
EE&ERRE Rate of return on fixed assets 7 -12.3% -10.5%

FELOEBSEMMEARNTBRKRN —FD -
The notes on pages 59 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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87 5 1A R R
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R—_E-_RAF=A=+—H as at 31 March 2025
(LA EE T 2%l 7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
B 3T
Note 2025 2024
IRBEE Non-current assets
M - R R EEM Property, plant and equipment 8 270,423 274,800
FTHREEE Right-of-use assets 9(a) 7,457 11,511
BVEE Intangible assets 10 94,890 77,393
NP B 2 17 R Placement with the Exchange Fund 11 1,114,660 1,074,889
1,487,430 1,438,593
REBEE Current assets
JE Y iR 3R N E b B . Trade and other receivables
IR 12,13(@) 29,073 30,615
JEURAE A LR  Amounts due from related parties 13(a) 10,783 9,756
RITIF 3K Bank deposits 195,000 266,000
BEe RRITHEH Cash and bank balances 12,457 13,179
247,313 319,550
REAE Current liabilities
WA Deferred revenue 13(b) 8,811 8,571
XFEES Customers’ deposits 14 53,874 53,750
FERIIR X X b fEf  Trade and other payables
KIE 14,557 14,482
JEfTRAE A LIRE  Amounts due to related parties 4,115 4,546
HEARE Lease liabilities 9(b) 3,173 3,359
EERAEE Provision for employee benefits 15 14,678 16,131
99,208 100,839
REBEEFHR Net current assets 148,105 218,711
BWEEMEREBERE Total assets less current liabilities 1,635,535 1,657,304

EEOEBSEMM R/ ANTBRRE —FED ©
The notes on pages 59 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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ISR R R (&) Statement of Financial Position (continued)

B &
Note 2025 2024
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
EIEYA Deferred revenue 13(b) 12,975 12,459
MEAE Lease liabilities 9(b) 4,595 8,544
e B &M B Provision for employee benefits 15 43,510 51,620
61,080 72,623
EERHE NET ASSETS 1,574,455 1,584,681
BEXK#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
BEHLGENR Trading fund capital 16 118,300 118,300
RE & T Retained earnings 17 1,456,155 1,466,381
1,574,455 1,584,681

EEELZLT P

THAMEESERES BLRE
—“E-RFNAA=-+=H

Ms Joyce TAM, JP

FLOESEMMERAM BRI —ED -

The notes on pages 59 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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Fe RS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BHE_ZT_hAF=-A=+—HIL&FE for the year ended 31 March 2025

(AE®EF oL R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

M 5F

Note 2025 2024
£ F Y1) 45 87 Balance at beginning of year 1,584,681 1,586,628
FEHE2ERE Total comprehensive income for the year 10,492 18,304
A T [B] 3 Statutory return to the Government 17 (20,718) (20,251)
EERNER Balance at end of year 1,574,455 1,584,681

EEOEBSEMM R/ ANTBRRE —FED ©
The notes on pages 59 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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REMER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_ZE_RAF=A=1+—HIFE for the year ended 31 March 2025

(AT T AL5) 7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2025 2024
EETHNEESRE Cash flows from operating activities
EEBE Loss from operations (44,001) (36,094)
FE - Adjustments for:
ITE K # Depreciation and amortisation 25,291 31,009
HEBEMNMNEX T Interest expense on lease liabilities 305 218
BREME  RERSBIM Gain on disposals of property, plant and
&7 equipment - (5)
JEU R IE K FEUL B8 A+ (ncrease)/Decrease in receivables and
MR (38 ),k amounts due from related parties (1,848) 6,125
EIER AR, CR L) Increase/(Decrease) in deferred revenue 756 (1,778)
EFEREMEMOfd)  Increase/(Decrease) in customers’
deposits 124 672)
JEM BN EMEE AL Increase in payables and amounts due to
R SR A9 0 related parties 693 3,140
EE BN BENR L Decrease in provision for employee
benefits (9,563) (8,795)
BREEEEMNHEELFE  Netcash used in operating activities (28,243) (6,852)

FEEOEBSEMME AN BHRKRN —FD -
The notes on pages 59 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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IBE M8 X (B) Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

B 5
Note 2025 2024
RETHHEEMRE Cash flows from investing activities
JR B HR &31E A Decrease in bank deposits with original
A E®IRITIER maturities over three months
B R 71,000 156,000
BEWE RER Purchase of property, plant and
BMMEREE equipment, and intangible assets (36,104) (42,147)
HEME  BER Proceeds from disposals of property,
BMET1F plant and equipment - 5
INERE S TR Increase in placement with the Exchange
1 11 Fund (39,771) (166,433)
=&Y Interest received 56,856 53,790
REREFEHMNIEE Net cash from investing activities
R 51,981 1,215
METEHNESRE Cash flows from financing activities
2 BT A FE Bl # Statutory return paid to the Government (20,718) (20,251)
TNHEEAE Payments of lease liabilities 9(b) (3,742) (3,840)
ARMETEN Net cash used in financing activities
REFHE (24,460) (24,091)
BeREREAESH Net decrease in cash and cash
e equivalents (722) (29,728)
EFINERER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
ZRRE of year 13,179 42,907
EFRNEAEER Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18
ZRRE 12,457 13,179

EEOEBSEMME R/ ANTBRRE —FED °
The notes on pages 59 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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87 5 ¥k 2% BiY 5%
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRSEZTHN FIEES (Amounts expressed in thousands of
LA ¥ F A% 7R) Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)
1. #AW® GENERAL

VEEBE-—NMN=ZFNA=ZTARB(EEESKH)(F4308) £33 4 R6HFBERER &
—HNA=FNA-—ARIIHAMRELEES(E2]) tHAMEREFHIZHEHN L
WERMUART L EMGE  YmFPRMAES M L &M AMNA L4858 RE MR
oo wSh - LM EME M IRRCGEEYER GO (EIMB) B EME X TR IDEBE NP FRE
HHAE B AR 7S -

The Land Registry Trading Fund (“the Fund”) was established on 1 August 1993 under the Legislative
Council Resolution passed on 30 June 1993 pursuant to sections 3, 4 and 6 of the Trading Funds
Ordinance (Cap. 430). The Land Registry administers a land registration system by maintaining an
up-to-date Land Register and provides its customers with services and facilities for searches of the Land
Register and related land records. The Land Registry also processes applications for the incorporation of
owners and provides related services under the Building Management Ordinance (Cap. 344).

2. ERSFBEK MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
21 FEEREH Statement of compliance

AP BRREREBVBRESFEIN WM NEAAR  BRAESAMASRMHD
FREERMERNBEWHHREER  BESFERRB) REEAREHTRAMBEHR -
ETRANBERSTBRINFEWAT -

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards,
which is a collective term that includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations as issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. Material accounting policies adopted by the Fund are set out
below.

EREFMAGEM TETHERLEITANEEVBRESGHEANDIRESH ARG
HEREM A HEMER - BN EEXRMETERNER M| R A ST R RAES
WS BORNE (WB) ERREAMBRE - BEENHNHES -

The HKICPA has issued certain new or amended HKFRS Accounting Standards that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Fund. Note 3
provides information on the changes, if any, in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Fund for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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871 5 ¥R < Bt 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

2. EXRETTHERmwm MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
22 REMBHRKRNWEE Basis of preparation of the financial statements
A BHRERNEBREEGUREX ARG E
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical cost.

I ACRBHMIERE Bt RADN W B MA TR EIREF LA Aat LRS- S
HE - A ABRRETESABRRNER UREE - BF WAERIHHZRAE - Z
FHALABNRRKR HRAEERLEAMESEABRATRAB/A ﬁﬁ’]l%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂ fid
%&*ﬁ‘ﬁlﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁT,\/% AlemxAZSRARRRIESHBTEBEEERABNIK
HEMNEE - LA ERASHEREEEGM TR -

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

ZEEHRAMKBOBREERERT - METRHGEHRAPEETH ANETE
EZETHANER: MBI ERSHBIARAKRN S SEETHERKRN G
/H«Hwﬁﬁwuo

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

ESGEERSABRRITEE DS RAEMEBSN S HE - BEm i R RELDNRR
BEBBABETAEFENTHAREZ S TEUNBREXRAR EHEEMAE
& B KFEKRBER -

2
B IR

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the application of the Fund’s accounting
policies. There are also no key assumptions concerning the future, or other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year.
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871 5 ¥R Z< Bt 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

2. EREFBEm MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
23 sRIEEREREE Financial assets and financial liabilities
(@ VEBERRTE Initial recognition and measurement

(b)

EeMNEREECREIEES TR BURIRKEEMEWRNIE - BKREEALIR
FRITER URRE RRITHEER -

The Fund’s financial assets comprise placement with the Exchange Fund, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank deposits, and cash and bank balances.

%%Miﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁ J& A R R B EL L FE A KIR - B B A L IRB A
REERE-

The Fund’s financial liabilities comprise customers’ deposits, trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties and lease liabilities.

HeERAFHSRIANGNET T ZARREBEREERSHAE - X1
RHERAR ZREENSBEBERATVEFE BNLIBEZARBZFREE

ABTZETREEMEESIBHORZAA -

The Fund recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. At initial recognition, financial assets and
financial liabilities are measured at fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets or the issue of the financial liabilities.

TERHERFE Classification and subsequent measurement

EeREMATMEESBERERUNERA X ZBHXANETE IRAEHT A
&E R A Uﬁéﬁﬁﬁmmiﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ BENBRERERFAXNNAE
BB o & @& ZE H B 18 2 B R B MY &£ 2.3(d) At m%%t%%%@ﬁﬁéo

The Fund classifies all financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, on the basis that they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold them for collection of contractual cash flows and the contractual cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. The measurement of loss
allowances for financial assets is based on the expected credit loss model as described in
note 2.3(d).

ERANRERFEeMEEX TR AGNHEBERANE UEES REREGHEEEN
MEBAITHEN T EZ BERMNEREASZeMEEXLSRAEER RHRE AN
BARER MBEAZEREENROAEIZ SR EENEHRAEMERD
BERE - RS EFEERMNER EEEZLRITANMBSNETAGETRSR
E-BreRBHERAESE- ﬁ%%ﬁ@%ﬁ?@ﬂ%@%%%ﬁ%ﬁ@%iﬁ
TRHNETWNER RXHRANA R MEERITE

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating and recognising the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of
the financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Fund estimates cash
flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider
the expected credit losses. The calculation includes all fees received or paid between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all
other premiums or discounts.

4 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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871 5 ¥R < Bt 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

2. EXRETTHERmwm MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

23 eWMEEREBMABm@m Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(b)

(d)

TEREARFTE @ Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

EeHEMEeMB B AR/ARBRUBRMNE X RBHEKNAETE HEERER
M—JLuf25ﬁﬁ u-l_io

The Fund classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, except for lease liabilities as stated in note 2.5.

EcEAEEEXSREENEKRALREYR T REABEEEH» B -8 8
BETEEH DR -

The Fund reclassifies a financial asset when and only when it changes its business model for
managing the asset. A financial liability is not reclassified.

HHEER Derecognition

iﬁ?ﬁéﬁr@ﬂﬁfzﬂﬁﬁifﬁﬁ}miﬂﬁ MENERS  AZEREESEREEENE A
PRBIEOREERN ZeMEESRITHER -

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or where the financial asset together with substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

EAAEANEBRERIBUE KK Z2REESWEHER -

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged
or cancelled, or expires.

SRIARE Impairment of financial instruments

ESLBHEKAAEFENESE T A (BUIRER SN 2R A B SE B K 55
EFRHERABRLERERNEBREGIAEBERXEE AHERABERNAEER
HEBUR T B )46 T8 LA SR B9 (5 A AL B 1

The Fund applies a three-stage approach to measure expected credit losses on financial
instruments (other than trade receivables) measured at amortised cost and to recognise the
corresponding loss allowances and impairment losses or reversals, with the change in credit
risk since initial recognition determining the measurement bases for expected credit losses:

F1EER 12 AFEREREE
Stage 1: 12-month expected credit losses

FEVEERAUNER eRTANGEHERILEXFEEMN 2RFEREHEEF R
EREERI2EAANAEZRENENSHIBNERERABEERNE D T AER

For financial instruments for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the portion of the lifetime expected credit losses that represent the
expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date are recognised.
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871 5 ¥R Z< Bt 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ERESFHER®@ MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
23 EWMEEREBMABm@m Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(d €@ I ARE@E Impairment of financial instruments (continued)
F2RER 2 HBEAERERE-EERARE
Stage 2: Lifetime expected credit losses — not credit impaired

ZEVEERAR R T ANEHARRANIEE N - B3 3EE AR
gfﬁ%%ﬂéﬁﬁmﬁlﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ JZHH NFTERREHIEMENSEMH
518) T LAFERR o

For financial instruments for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but that are not credit impaired, lifetime expected credit losses representing
the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of
the financial instruments are recognised.

FIBER: 2 HERERAEE-ERRE
Stage 3: Lifetime expected credit losses — credit impaired

Fem T ASBERERRE EEW/\/HHE‘,E/HH%FHJEETE MB YA R E B BRI X
OO TEENGE T Aal-C L

For financial instruments that have become credit impaired, lifetime expected credit losses
are recognised and interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost rather than the gross carrying amount.

ERERNEEEF - BERESRE2HAHEAEENERTE -

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses.

4a{a] & FE 15 /2 B Determining significant increases in credit risk

A &2 0

ESEREE ESEIRGBIARRE A RXNGHREBESR TNBHEHN
HANBBEEONER  UFEem T ENGEARRESRBE N  B@ETEEER
HENEEFLEN UARAMEMNHNER & ?’*i*lﬁiyﬁ’\*iﬁﬁ%é—awﬂéﬁ
MESARBAESREETEENSH ZeREESRTTAERRE-

At each reporting date, the Fund assesses whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk for financial instruments since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the remaining expected life as at the reporting date with that as at the date of
initial recognition.  The assessment considers quantitative and qualitative historical
information as well as forward-looking information. A financial asset is assessed to be credit
impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.

%$E1%|szé‘$éi+ at {5 B WA HE R LA 2 F)ﬂﬂﬁ B DKL - phiR & FFE
M R ITARARGERARFENEERE YZEEBKRERH  ERHRARFR
NEMHEBERE-

The Fund assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition on an individual or collective basis. For collective assessment, financial
instruments are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics, taking into account
investment type, credit risk ratings and other relevant factors.
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871 5 ¥R < Bt 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

2. EXRETTHERmwm MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

23 eWMEEREBMABm@m Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(d €& T AREE@ Impairment of financial instruments (continued)
20 1a] B JE A= A R B2 Determining significant increases in credit risk (continued)
A M5 4 50 ()

SEERRRARARNNRIFREEABECARR SR IALT LR
ARE AXSUFRERAABEEE NECNNBAIEA NN REEE &
BAABEERAR S RT AMERERE T A S NHERAREEX
U 4% A1 -

Placements with banks with an external credit rating of investment grade are considered to
have a low credit risk. Other financial instruments are considered to have a low credit risk if
they have a low risk of default and the counterparty or borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. The credit risk on these financial
instruments is assessed as not having increased significantly since initial recognition.

FERMEEEZINE ZeMEESRAMEBEERBNE ZFEEETKAAL
ERFLEEBHESBRME ERKELHEBFENSREELE RER AR

When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related loss allowance.
Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the
amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

FrTEARIEHEE Measurement of expected credit losses

TRIANBHEABERYZ SR T EERHARNYPAMN R F L EH = G
MEAEBREIMAERAESHNRE) ERBESC/ARREVNENTESHNRERE
EESHHWINBAEREMERANERE FEHEEARS ARIEERBE
EeRBEZEENEEMEABANTAENANRZEEN R ERM X ENMGERR
RReRENREMERNEZRFERREREE -

Expected credit losses of a financial instrument are an unbiased and probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of
the financial instrument. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows due to the
Fund in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Fund expects to receive.
For a financial asset that is credit impaired at the reporting date, the Fund measures the
expected credit losses as the difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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871 5 ¥R Z< Bt 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

2. EXRBFTHEmw MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 ¥ -FEREM Property, plant and equipment

R—AN=ZFNA-—BBRBESNYE RENSEV  SVNRANELRILEES FRE
RUBSHRBETAINGEEAR - B - ANA=ZF/N\A-—BEBENYE  RE NS
MR BB R A AR

Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the Fund on 1 August 1993 were measured initially
at deemed cost equal to the value contained in the Legislative Council Resolution for the setting
up of the Fund. Property, plant and equipment acquired since 1 August 1993 are capitalised at
the actual costs incurred.

ﬁf%l}ﬁ&\v AT R B Ras A B AN (B 0 Bk Rt 4 8 K (T 1R (8 8 18 1) iR
T5E2.7)

- R-AN=FN\A-BRBEESEANEEY: AR
- RELESEM BRERSM SE KAREE URHMSEM-

EREIRRAKRAENREMREESRIIK BN RATE - ERIRERN XL A HEM
Rt IRITE -

The following items of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses (note 2.7):

—  buildings held for own use appropriated to the Fund on 1 August 1993; and

—  plant and equipment, including computer equipment, motor vehicles, furniture and fittings,
and other equipment.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is
depreciated when completed and ready for use.
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871 5 ¥R < Bt 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

2. EXEFHEX@ MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 ¥ - BRI @ Property, plant and equipment (continued)

FEERENE BREREMOBTTERESN NEREBENGETFHBRERGR
AME - BAMEH AT EREHNT

-  BEY 304
- EmHRM S0
- BN RAREE 54
- AE 55

WERE AIERAFHAMNAREESAVRFEGERNG YEEERFELAR -

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings 30 years
—  Computer equipment 5—-10 years
— Equipment, furniture and fittings 5 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

RNAN=ZFNA-BBRRESNEEVREN LR SIFFEEE -

The land on which the Fund’s buildings are situated as appropriated to the Fund on 1 August 1993
is regarded as a non-depreciating asset.

HEME REBEBVMOESALENSIREEENRAECANEZRIORE L&
HEBREEKERAHER -

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the date of disposal.
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871 5 ¥R Z< Bt 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ERESFHER®@ MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
25 HE Leases

HESREAMAGEMBRARANERSEREEELRERNEERE X RHEH
BIREAXATHERHEREEEEEHENHARASERENANEREFT AR
T Y 8 3R o

A lease is recognised in the statement of financial position as a right-of-use asset with a
corresponding lease liability at the lease commencement date, except that payments associated
with short-term leases having a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets are
charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

EREEESEAANEMGRRFANEREAREBENE (HE27) REREEERHE
ERNEENRAAERFHMETNREENERENE

A right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
(note 2.7). The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the asset’s estimated useful life.

HEABERAHERREIANHEERBNREFE  YABRERS M RFTIR - HWZF
TRREHTE AR RBERFNETR HEABEERZEEAGAIENNEER
XNHWEEFRE REARRNEEAGEEGRRHECKNENTEFEAE -

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Fund’s incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently adjusted by
the effect of the interest on and the settlement of the lease liability, and the remeasurement arising
from any reassessment of the lease liability or lease modification.
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2. ERZFBERm MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
26 BLEE Intangible assets

BRNEEERBANERAGERREEAMEMERRGFEAFEKAE BHRAMGIE
AMRARER AR ENAE BABERMEATARAEEERKLENZD - ME
T BARNARAERTKARTIFLERAMEEANEE FRENAREATERERN
1E°%§&U{J’J EZ%?@E@%EH&Z%%W&%°?ﬂi%ﬁ%?ﬁﬁ$@?ﬂB%f%?r%ﬁﬁﬁ&fﬂﬂi@ﬂﬁ%
850k (Ff£2.7) °

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences and capitalised development costs
of computer software programmes. Expenditure on development of computer software
programmes is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the programmes are
technically feasible, future economic benefits are probable and the Fund intends to and has
sufficient resources to complete development and to use the resulting asset. Otherwise, it is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred. Intangible assets are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses (note 2.7).

BV EENBHERAAIEAFHGEI0F) MEHLEINATHKER -

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

BET L UEAFHLRAKEESEMBFE cEARETHGE  LIFHEENAER -

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

27 kemEENRE Impairment of non-financial assets

FEREE(RENE RERST CRABAENSLEE)WIREERESARS AT
o DRSS ER BN R o £ A R IR M A 2 A O [ 18 5 0 £ o] U B BOREeS - Al
BAEEREESMHERAHE REDTHERSARAFRALERARERE
M R -

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets, including property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to identify any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use.
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2. EXRBFTHEmw MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
28 HeRkERES Cash and cash equivalents

RehFRAERASMRTES UANBEHUMTAESNRE  ZFHEEBA
i BE R B BB 3 ME A - Iﬁﬁﬁf—ILTﬁﬁjE%ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁE’ﬁEi mMEBEZFHHEARTK -

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances, and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

2.9 EZEW A Deferred revenue
EESBERBETEFA 8P XMNRE HESAFEGERS E’MHELISZ R BEe
SERECGHNEEHERRETCPRA R EBERBUBTHENEER  SEHERE
FEHA - 0 BRA DDA TERR ©
If a customer pays consideration, or the Fund has an unconditional right to consideration, before
the Fund transfers a service to the customer, the Fund recognises its contract liability as deferred
revenue. The Fund derecognises the deferred revenue and recognises revenue when the Fund
transfers the service and, therefore, satisfies its performance obligation.

210EEE R Employee benefits

EeNEERRABERGNETI FHe HnHekFRAXHERERHEBRARE
FTEFENRHEERRAR -RABEMS BEENGERIRAXBEEBERHITTHE
BRE(TBRFDETRENERKEMEERN HEEREBRHEABREMEFENHE-

The employees of the Fund comprise civil servants and contract staff. Salaries, staff gratuities and
annual leave entitlements are accrued and recognised as expenditure in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by the staff. For civil servants, staff on-costs, including pensions
and housing benefits provided to the staff by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“the Government”), are charged as expenditure in the year in which the
associated services are rendered.

RERAZERARESHERZENAD %imﬁﬁi,\f\a’ai KX T BT A B & R A B X
Fh e Efiﬂﬂalﬁﬁ% 2% G HIIE AT S 3 B EPI) (B 4858) T i at 8 RAN 2 mIK
m R A H

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, their pension liabilities are discharged by
reimbursement of the staff on-costs charged by the Government. For other staff, contributions to
the schemes under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (“MPFSQ”) (Cap. 485) are
charged to the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.
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2. ERZFBERm MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
211 AR Revenue recognition

EeeERNEPRBEMARNREABTERANEER RESHENAIBZBERE A
BRRENEZE EREPANNKA -

The Fund recognises revenue from contracts with customers when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised service to a customer, at the amount of consideration to
which the Fund expects to be entitled in exchange for the service.

MBWARBERN I EABET ERER -
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

2125 ] E Foreign currency translation

REENIINBRXHGERFANREETRERET UFETREVNEREENRERE
EHREBMNBETEXTSRERBT - I EREELANELREREEEEZEARERT
FER -

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the spot
exchange rates at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies
other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the closing exchange
rate at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Q1IBEE AL Related parties

HeERB(EEESHRIDRY YBRFE TN —EABY S EM -FRN R EAF
EBHEREBEEATETRZ ELHEALTERBRFSRRB LI Kt EE
T AREBREMEHSBRAHERERTE NPT B E T #E -

The Fund is a separate accounting entity within the Government established under the Trading
Funds Ordinance. During the year, the Fund has entered into transactions with various related
parties, including government bureaux and departments, other trading funds and financially
autonomous bodies controlled or significantly influenced by the Government, in the ordinary
course of its business.
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SRR E CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BAERMASEN TETHEALETNEAVHRESHEADIRNESN AT HE
REB - BRARAABREAERFENSHRR  URRELEERMAEMLE -

The HKICPA has issued certain new or amended HKFRS Accounting Standards that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Fund. There have been no changes to the accounting policies
applied in these financial statements for the years presented as a result of these developments.

HEoWRARMERS T HI R E A EA 37 E ] sz (i E22) -

The Fund has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (note 22).

KEEEFEEHZWA REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH

CUSTOMERS

2025 2024
HEIE S i Registration of documents 134,216 136,538
& Search 79,499 77,834
RHEIAR Copying 80,131 75,557
E e Reports on title 43,291 64,210
BEFRERARE e-Alert services 18,433 25,952
XETITREERE Owners’ corporation services 26,172 21,099
Hfth Others 17,710 14,739
wEE Total 399,452 415,929

HeERXEPANTEMBENER TESRATPRHBEXHEMEEHLWELMNE
AL MRENRE TP ANBEARSESBEECENREE JEBEESFIKRS A
BIRBE E2ERUBRBORBSETENEE LERKBBERKALINEERKE -

The Fund’s performance obligations in contracts with customers mainly involve providing services, for
registration of documents and searches of the Land Register and related land records, to the
customers. A customer is required to pay a fixed amount of service fee for each service in advance, or
opt to have service fees being charged monthly by opening an account with the Fund. The Fund
satisfies its performance obligation as the service is rendered and recognises the fee over time based
on a cost-to-cost method.

ERBEALIRERIVURZERBEIE EcRERERENARKETEAORE XHER
BMREBRKE2MAART A ERREE

For owners’ corporation services provided to related parties, the Fund satisfies its performance

obligation as the service is rendered and recognises a service fee over time on a full cost recovery
basis.
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E 1E A OPERATING COSTS
2025 2024

E\ TE&H Staff costs

TMEEME T ER — Salaries and other staff costs 314,221 313,026
- << R Al RE R EJr 2l — Contributions to the schemes under

fER B> T B 5T 81 L3 MPFSO 20,469 18,134
—MEBERAX General operating expenses 15,166 19,078
BEIAR A Computer service charges 43,999 45,835
He&kiEEER Rental and related charges 18,615 20,121
FRITHE A Central administrative overheads 4,984 4,171
e R#H Depreciation and amortisation 25,291 31,009
BB A Audit fees 708 649
FLg Total 443,453 452,023
H b ug A OTHER INCOME

2025 2024

A B : Interest from:
- RITHEK — bank deposits 12,517 16,365
- INEES TR — placement with the Exchange Fund 41,976 38,033
4 ZE Total 54,493 54,398
E & & E B #;E RATE OF RETURN ON FIXED ASSETS
BEEERNREENEZARZT(FTEENERANBRNEEEEFS FEFE YU BD L
MARAKRE- BTCEERABRREYE IEESVNEFLEE FHHESUE JEEEJTBZTTE

RECE

E%@ﬂ%%ﬁéiﬂ@ifﬁﬁ% BEE®ER6.0%(ZFT_MHEF : 6.0%) °

The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total comprehensive income (excluding interest
income) divided by average net fixed assets, and expressed as a percentage. Fixed assets include
property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets only. The Fund is expected to meet a target rate
of return on fixed assets of 6.0% (2024: 6.0%) per year as determined by the Financial Secretary under

the Trading Funds Ordinance.
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8. M=% REBRHB[M PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
B/
TR B KA
BEY B REE AE “y
Equipment,
Landand  Computer Furniture Motor
Buildings  Equipment and Fittings Vehicles Total
B Cost
“Z-=F@A—A At 1 April 2023 350,000 193,859 31,207 287 575,308
NE Additions - 14,536 22 - 14,558
e/ Disposals - (5,095) - - (5,095)
E-Z-_NFE=A=+—H At 31 March 2024 350,000 203,300 31,229 237 584,766
E-T-_MENA—H At 1 April 2024 350,000 203,300 31,229 237 584,766
nE Additions - 6,522 321 - 6,843
W&/ Disposals - (436) (973) - (1,409)
A-E-_RF¥=F=1+-H At 31 March 2025 350,000 209,386 30,577 237 590,200
2iHE Accumulated depreciation
E-Z-_=FNA—H At 1 April 2023 114,249 159,098 26,161 47 299,555
FRER Charge for the year 2,451 9,855 3,153 47 15,506
HE /e & Written back on disposals - (5,095) = S (5,095)
E-Z-_NF=A=+—H At 31 March 2024 116,700 163,858 29,314 94 309,966
E-Z-_MENA—H At 1 April 2024 116,700 163,858 29,314 94 309,966
FRER Charge for the year - 9,645 1,527 48 11,220
W& /S8 B Written back on disposals - (436) (973) - (1,409)
A-E-_RF¥=F=1+-H At 31 March 2025 116,700 173,067 29,868 142 319,777
REFE Net book value
A-E-_RE=F=+-H At 31 March 2025 233,300 36,319 709 95 270,423
EZB-mFE=A=1—H At 31 March 2024 233,300 39,442 1,915 143 274,800

E_E-_RAF=ZA=+—H8 RY%E REXEVMOREETPERNSVEETLAEEIRERN
SR(ZZT _UF : 5008 EF L) °

As at 31 March 2025, HK$5.9 million (2024: HK$5.9 million) recognised in the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment was the amount of construction in progress.
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9. HE LEASES
(@ EAEEE Right-of-use assets
BEY
Buildings
2025 2024

2N Cost

£ F 4] At beginning of year 30,314 30,314

ENEHEAE Remeasurement of lease liabilities (698) -

£ F 4% At end of year 29,616 30,314
2t E Accumulated depreciation

£EEH At beginning of year 18,803 15,276

FANEHR Charge for the year 3,356 3,527

£ 42 At end of year 22,159 18,803
IR & FE Net book value

£ F 42 At end of year 7,457 11,511

b)) HEEE Lease liabilities
2025 2024

B Current 3,173 3,359
JERB Non-current 4,595 8,544
4 28 Total 7,768 11,903
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0. *ﬂ E (%) LEASES (continued)
(b) HEE B @ Lease liabilities (continued)
TREAREARNED SERLNERLED -

The table below shows changes in lease liabilities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

2025 2024
EEA At beginning of year 11,903 15,525
REMEBLSREMNE S : Changes from financing cash flows:
TNEEARE Payments of lease liabilities (3,742) (3,840)
FHREED : Non-cash changes:
HEAGENFEZH Interest expense on lease liabilities 305 218
EFFrEHEARE Remeasurement of lease liabilities (698) -
EER At end of year 7,768 11,903

HERENNKREVHBRINFENT  FEEHERBEANAUANREREI L

The remaining contractual maturities of lease liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows, are shown below:

2025 2024
—FA Within one year 3,410 3,520
—FREMFN After one year but within two years 3,720 3,840
MEBRERAFNH After two years but within five years 980 4,852
wE Total 8,110 12,212
c) RE2EKRBZRANEIRE  Expense items in relation to leases recognised in
HEEBRANXIHIE the statement of comprehensive income
2025 2024
HEBENFEZH Interest expense on lease liabilities 305 218
(d HEZHRESRHAE Total cash outflow for leases
2025 2024
HEAE Lease liabilities 3,742 3,840

EREMERE ESRAKLTHERZ ERAREENHERBERAERE_T_F
A=t BENMREETEEHER -

After the end of the reporting period, the Fund early terminated the lease. The right-of-use assets
and the lease liabilities will be fully derecognised in the financial year ending 31 March 2026.
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0.BEEE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BB BT
SEN R RS
Computer software licences
and system development costs

2025 2024
5N Cost
EF A At beginning of year 289,456 263,406
NE Additions 28,212 26,728
& Disposals - 678)
TEF R At end of year 317,668 289,456
2t Accumulated amortisation
£ F 4 At beginning of year 212,063 200,765
FRNEHA Charge for the year 10,715 11,976
& 8 = B Written back on disposals - 678)
EF R At end of year 222,778 212,063
R S E Net book value
EFR At end of year 94,890 77,393
MIIEEEERK PLACEMENT WITH THE EXCHANGE FUND

INEESTFRERABINAA7TEE T (ZEZMNF - 1074988 T) Eh79B BT (Z T _MFE :
79L/E7E>7Ef'v$i&3247 BT (ZZEZNF 2849188 T) ABREBHE AKRME R ARIZINAF
TTAH)%%HH/\QE(EE@ E'%il;u-l—) /HHWT TEHY\$EE°

The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund amounted to HK$1,114.7 million (2024:
HK$1,074.9 million), being the principal sums of HK$790 million (2024: HK$790 million) plus interest
paid but not yet withdrawn at the reporting date of HK$324.7 million (2024: HK$284.9 million). The
term of the placement is six years from the date of placement, during which the amount of principal
sums cannot be withdrawn.

SINEESFRMNEREF - ABENEEERFAE ZEXRINEESREMSBESFHT
VEEREOR  IB3FHBMEFEL—EAFENTHFEREER - LA0% A TR - MERE
BaE —T_hBFHNEERXREF44% M_ZT_HNEBEF/EFI7%-

Interest on the placement is payable at a fixed rate determined every January. The rate is the average
annual investment return of the Exchange Fund’s Investment Portfolio for the past six years or the
average annual yield of three-year Government Bond for the previous year subject to a minimum of zero
percent, whichever is the higher. The interest rate has been fixed at 4.4% per annum for the calendar
year 2025 and at 3.7% per annum for the calendar year 2024.
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12. ERR AR HAittfEUFIE TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2025 2024
Ji& I IR FR Trade receivables 9,568 8,326
JEET IS - Accrued interest from:
-IRITHFER — bank deposits 2,123 6,691
-INEEE TR — placement with the Exchange Fund 12,093 9,888
AR Prepayments 5,289 5,710
48 2E Total 29,073 30,615

13.EEFHNENER CONTRACT BALANCES WITH
CUSTOMERS

(@ EBRRENENEE Receivables and contract assets

FREAREMAZPRHEMNRBM S - RS B A FE U RIR & & BN K 521280 B ik
R ZERRETREALORSE R-ZE_RAF=A=1T—HNEYRAZHKR1078EE T
(ZZFE_MF 9768 BTT)  2EHRCBRRMBEARAKRTNEBKBEEALIRR -MES
WAREEMBRREMBRFNEGNEE - EREMRE ARTFERERBER - Bt
ESWRAEMEBRFEXENEE -

For services provided to customers with service fees charged monthly, the balance of receivables
at the reporting date is presented as trade receivables in note 12. For services provided to related
parties, the balance of receivables as at 31 March 2025 of HK$10.8 million (2024: HK$9.8 million)
is included in the amounts due from related parties in the statement of financial position. The Fund
does not have any contract assets arising from these two categories of services. For other
services, since customers pay the service fees in advance, the Fund does not have any receivables
or contract assets.
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1. EEFMENESHRw CONTRACT BALANCES WITH
CUSTOMERS (continued)

b) ERNEE Contract liabilities

ESAWREFPEAANERARAZFPREHEBRBNELT  SXMHIRKD LEZ KR AD
RS - 2T

The Fund’s obligations to provide services to customers for which the Fund has received advance
payments from the customers are presented as deferred revenue in the statement of financial
position, as analysed below:

iE 3E U A Deferred revenue 2025 2024
FHREE Registration fees 6,654 6,138
BEFIRTIREE e-Alert service fees 13,646 13,373
EMpR&EE Other service fees 1,486 1,519
B Total 21,786 21,030
(e Representing:

REAE Current liabilities 8,811 8,571

ERBEE Non-current liabilities 12,975 12,459
wmzE Total 21,786 21,030

FRBERANEHRTIEREEDBERERET(RBORBET)NENEENRSZE
REE -ELAMN BREEFRTIRENECKASNSFRERRSWA - M HEMET
BAREMTFREERRBEA - REEATEFPEHNNNREBERBARZER -

The balances of deferred revenue above represent the aggregate amount of the transaction price
allocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at the
reporting date. For the deferred revenue from e-Alert services, the Fund expects to recognise as
revenue within eight years. For other deferred revenue, the Fund expects to recognise as revenue
within one year. No consideration from contracts with customers is not included in the transaction
price.
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1. EZEFMEaNEtumw CONTRACT BALANCES WITH
CUSTOM ERS (continued)

b) EHNEE@ Contract liabilities (continued)

FABRERAEHOERNESFHINDT

Significant changes in the balances of deferred revenue during the year are shown below:

2025 2024
HFVIRLEUW AT R Decrease due to recognition as
FEBRERNERER AW A  revenue during the year that
i s > was included in the balances of
deferred revenue at beginning of
year (5,733) (8,165)
FRWMEBEHERM Increase due to advance payments
3 received during the year 6,489 6,387
14.F5FES CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS
EREPRERBATKRERANZSE -
This represents deposits received from customers for services to be rendered.
15. BEERBAEE PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
R EFERESAREENRBEETEESTREGHNEEA MM NGB AE(R

BfsE2.10) °

This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave and obligations on contract-end
gratuities payable to contract staff for services rendered up to the reporting date (see note 2.10).

16. EEETER TRADING FUND CAPITAL

ERBRRHESHRE -

This represents the Government’s investment in the Fund.
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17.

18.

REZR RETAINED EARNINGS

2025 2024
1 F Y 8 4 B Balance at beginning of year 1,466,381 1,468,328
FREHEzEKE Total comprehensive income for the year 10,492 18,304
I FF A FE Bl ¥ Statutory return to the Government (20,718) (20,251)
EFANER Balance at end of year 1,456,155 1,466,381

FR BRRBKEEEZESRIDERISHE T _MF=A=1T-HLEFENBELRR(E
ME7ERZBN—RBEA MZEER T _AF=AZK(ZE_NF HE_T_=F
AT HUEFENEROBFNERN _T_MF=AxMK) -

During the year, the Government directed the transfer of the target return (see note 7) for the year
ended 31 March 2024 into general revenue pursuant to the Trading Funds Ordinance, and the transfer
was completed in March 2025 (2024: the transfer of the target return for year ended 31 March 2023
was completed in March 2024).

BHeERERRE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2025 2024
R e RIRTTE % Cash and bank balances 12,457 13,179
|ITHFE XK Bank deposits 195,000 266,000
NEt Subtotal 207,457 279,179
B RABHIR &3ME A LA £ Less: Bank deposits with original
B iR 1717 K maturities over three months (195,000) (266,000)
HeRERRE Cash and cash equivalents 12,457 13,179
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BEALHX RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BREEARBRENSERBENI SN FRARMEATERTNHGEARISRHRMT -

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the other material related party
transactions for the year are summarised as follows:

@ EZRABEEALRHUHOREEF LM XXEEM ST HECM R 0L E RHE L
BRI RS LA&%EI%H&IHE% BUERBAESTRNBIAS1.230BE T
(ZZE-MF 132988 L) - EL B EEMFTIANRBEEFAHNZWAET

services provided to related parties included registration of land documents, search of land
registers and records, supply of copies of land records and reports on title, and owners’
corporation services. The total revenue derived from these services amounted to HK$123.0 million
(2024: HK$132.9 million). This amount is included in revenue from contracts with customers
under note 4;

WA PRITB URBFAHORSE - KT

b BAEALTRESRENRSBEIEEBEE -
B (T - WF:34608 8 L) = BEdTERE

FE & R 77 E R AR 2 /52,7808 )
M EESHYE fER AR T AR

services received from related parties included computer services, accommodation, central
administration and auditing. The total cost incurred on these services amounted to
HK$27.8 million (2024: HK$34.6 million). This amount is included in operating costs under note 5; and

© MEBEALTBANYE RELEVEREEBEIR ELEENEKANAEREBITHET
(ZE - 4F : 2%2%%75)

acquisition of property, plant and equipment from related parties included fitting out projects. The
total cost of these assets amounted to HK$0.3 million (2024: HK$22,000).

HEomBABEATRH HE%’%MH&Z%%‘D*ﬁilﬁbAiﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂﬁl%%ﬁmﬁzﬁ”iﬂ—%fu & - B[R] B
REEARORE  WENMAR -5 EXRREHREEEA LIRS ARKE2FKATT

uy%—"

Charging for services rendered to or received from related parties was on the same basis, that is, at the
rates payable by the general public for services which were also available to the public or on a full cost
recovery basis for services which were available only to related parties.

cEEARER FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(@) REHE Investment policy

EeUBERTHNIARRECBEIEESHERERTEFANCREE - RENATR
ZRAMEEBLREERER BEREERMBELNES XA EMEMBRN -

The Fund maintains a conservative approach on investments in financial assets including
placement with the Exchange Fund and bank deposits. Investment decisions are made according
to the guidelines from the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury, the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority and other relevant regulations.
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20. € w7 B B B () FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) ERARAK Credit risk

EREREEZRIAN TR TEBETEECMASIIRE T XXV BBERNER -

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

HEeEARR  T2RORNIMNEESFH  BURIIRFA L E 0 EUWFIR - BUEEA LR
R RITERMBITER - ESFTARRER  URHEERBAENERHER -

The Fund’s credit risk is primarily attributable to placement with the Exchange Fund, trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank deposits and bank balances. The Fund
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing
basis.

SEEREKERER MEEHRERIERRNBENFERT ESNERRAREER
BR BEEGZESFR12EAARACGHAEENHENE E2FEMPFRNEBEL T
EX-

To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with licensed banks in Hong Kong. The
Fund’s exposure to credit risk is considered to be limited. The loss allowances are measured at
amounts equal to 12-month expected credit losses, which are assessed to be immaterial by the
Fund.

RITEAMBTERNERER UBBASESFEREENTFHR  2MAT

The credit quality of bank deposits and bank balances, analysed by the ratings designated by
Moody’s or their equivalents, is shown below:

2025 2024

E AR : Credit rating:
Aal 2 Aa3 Aal to Aa3 11,703 23,222
A1 £ A3 A1l to A3 195,102 255,101
48 5E Total 206,805 278,323

HAEMBEREEANTARMERTE BEESGHAEBYERABREN  AEEAELE
BEE -

While other financial assets are subject to the impairment requirements, the Fund has estimated
that their expected credit losses are minimal and considers that no loss allowance is required.

ERERESHNEREEMBAENESERERBBEHEENEKREE-

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets of the Fund at the reporting date is
equal to their carrying amounts.
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20. € w3 B B B () FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) RBESER Liquidity risk

(d)

nBECRBREX -—ERSEUBRTESMEGHEBNAETNER -

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities.

BE(EEEKN) E2BFA5HRcEE BREAKRENREHRE - HAEHMK
AARME BN BXEECHERNKLEHNRHESTE  BRELAFIHNE
ﬂi1‘%1% LA?"/\EEHHE’Mm@Jé %EC’EEE/\\\ /E/]/ @éﬂiﬂﬁ/ﬁ%@ Eﬁ(ﬁiﬁﬂﬂ’h@b
EeRBER-

Under the Trading Funds Ordinance, the Fund is responsible for its own cash management,
including short-term and long-term investment of cash surpluses, subject to approval by the
Financial Secretary. The Fund’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. As the Fund has a strong liquidity position, it has a very
low level of liquidity risk.

F = 7 Interest rate risk
ﬂyﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂl LR AFESAKRGARESEMGFXRE S MK E R - F XK@

““T i%ﬁ&ﬂ?@ﬂ?ﬂ &iﬁﬂimn%%uyﬂﬁ““ °

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. This can be further classified into fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

NP EMNERRESMTIANAFESEAT SN EEHMESHNOEAR HRESHRT
FREEEA R L - EWEFRLA BLEEROATERE T A - ARELTRT
R REHRAEI IR THENENEFIrEeFEHREELESNFERF -

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Since the Fund’s bank deposits bear interest at fixed
rates, their fair values will fall when market interest rates increase. However, as they are all stated
at amortised cost, changes in market interest rates will not affect their carrying amounts and the
Fund’s profit for the year.

ﬁimgﬂtﬂ h%ﬂlﬂ%*%ﬁéﬁ%g ﬁ%ﬂrm@ﬁ&@mﬂh° ﬁ
FEHEANBEEREFNXRR AAEFAENTEsR I AN TR ZEEMI -

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market interest rates. The Fund is not exposed to material cash flow
interest rate risk because it has no major financial instruments bearing interest at a floating rate.
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20. £ 7t F M B 1B ()

21.

(e)

(f)

(9)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
B ¥ b Currency risk

ERRRESRTIANAFEARRRERTESHEXTZES MLSDNEAR

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

ETN-—REFXGENETREML AMIT s BREERER -

The Fund’s normal business transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and therefore do
not give rise to currency risk.

ERNUEXTR/EMNRE EXBTEITHE EenEBERER -

In respect of investments denominated in United States dollars, owing to the linked exchange rate
of the Hong Kong dollar to the United States dollar, the Fund has a very low level of currency risk.

RZE_RAFE=A=+—"HB UETAAUNESREEAFTAESTAEL(ZZET _ME:
5F&) - e mEEMTESRAE i’]M%Ei%Kuo

As at 31 March 2025, financial assets totalling HK$5,000 (2024: HK$5,000) were denominated in
United States dollars. The remaining financial assets and all financial liabilities were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

HiLmmERm Other financial risk
ESANRNEF—AEBEENINERESFRE (W?ﬂ)ﬂ’]“@]ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁpﬂﬂ”}"B/\
_7_£$ A=+—H" ij&%—?—i'jJD/ﬁ BAEEMEMEEZAE  HitFEER

A,/ A 5608 8 T (— T — 4 - 540%@75)

The Fund is exposed to financial risk arising from changes in the interest rate on the placement
with the Exchange Fund which is determined every January (note 11). As at 31 March 2025, it is
estimated that an increase/decrease of 50 basis points in the interest rate, with all other variables
held constant, would have increased/decreased the profit for the year by HK$5.6 million (2024:
HK$5.4 million).

NEE Fair value

FTESRTAYNRERAFERSHABETIANESBET HFIRRARATIIEK -

All financial instruments are stated in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to or not
materially different from their fair values.

BEREE CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
MR-FE-REZA=+—0 ESYRENBRENBBOERAENT :

As at 31 March 2025, the Fund had capital commitments, so far as not provided for in the financial
statements, as follows:

2025 2024
B E & & ’] Authorised and contracted for 14,339 14,488
BEHUEERT L Authorised but not yet contracted for 226,562 195,252
wEE Total 240,901 209,740
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22. EMAERBE_ZE=-FHF POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
=ZA=t—BLEFEEAKR NEWSTANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
EMHER] - FHAERIKFEE ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
KA RERSE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

BEEAMBHRREL 2B BEESHAMASE RO LB  HELLEE - ZFEF - #
AR BEBE T _AF=A=+T—"BLEFERKRER TTREERNYNBRKRTIEAK
o FERIBIE

i

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2025 and
which have not been early adopted in these financial statements. The new standards include:

EUTEHHz#E
FHRMNEFHEN
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

B HmE R FE 1855 [ B 75 3 2k 51) ¥ K0 4% 5% | —E-t+F¥—H—H
HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements” 1 January 2027

EeTFHERARATEY B REEANEISRHEMBHRROAETZE -

The Fund is in the process of assessing the possible impact on its financial statements of HKFRS 18 in
the period of initial application.

B BB SRS R F 18 M B RERF BARE
HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements”

BV HREENFISFEMA B LS AL F 1R B BRI - 52 w0 U e K 716 T 285
MANGTEHBMY® BERERESE UNAHEHEEBEENREARTORESIAFMEE -
HemB A% ENHENBERRNEAZE - ZNENBR T _+F A —BHZR&RHA
BRFERELEN YEREPERER RIFVEAAT SHAEHIRELERF ESER
BEER B A B SR B B R -

HKFRS 18, which replaces HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”, introduces new
requirements for presentation of specified categories and subtotals in the statement of comprehensive
income, aggregation and disaggregation of information, as well as disclosures related to management-
defined performance measures. The Fund is yet to assess the full impact of the standard on its financial
statements. The new standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027
and will be applied retrospectively with restatement of comparatives unless impracticable. At this stage,
the Fund does not intend to adopt the standard before its effective date.
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(a) 2024/25 & £ BR 7§ & &4
PERFORMANCE PLEDGES 2024/25

MR s & BERRHE
PR 75 R % (FEFRBEEN (EIRBEED
Service Standard BOt) Bath)
TEXR Performance Target Actual Performance
PR % %8 5l Working 78 (% meeting service (% meeting service
Service Type Day(s) Minutes standard) standard)

1. I L b SO EE

Registration of land documents

(@ ANEIXEEREDIMOXEEH
T EREMED S AR
From receipt of an instrument to updating  (a) 11
the land register with the registered
instrument ©SeeNote V- gng

b TR EEEEFTEEAMAOXE
KERRA LD
Completion of imaging and return of (b) 3
the registered instrument to the lodging
party (See Note 1)

14 (a+b) 90 100

2. EEAUEMLHETH

Counter search of land registers 15 o7 100

3 RELIHAERFREERE
Supply of imaged copies of land records
(a) ZHE v ZEX

Over the counter
o NEBABER
Without oversized plans
o MfEiaAXE A
With oversized plans
(b) ZEBH L R % AT
Order via online services
(i) 5 HW
Collection in person
o NEEEEER
Without coloured plans
o ftiEEAEE A
With coloured plans
o MiZiaAE R
With oversized plans
(ii) %8 &5 3¢ H 18 4F 12 7] % B
Delivery by post or courier
o NEHEBEDER
Without coloured plans
- TT6KRIFIHB
Orders placed before 6 pm
- THeREREERN
EMARARBHBTE
Orders placed after 6 pm or on 2 97 100
Saturdays, Sundays & public
holidays
o MiEEAEE A
With coloured plans
o MfEidAXE A

With oversized plans

15 97 99.7

5 97 100

1 97 100

3 97 100

5 97 100

1 97 100

3 97 100

5 97 100
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PR 7 12 %
Service Standard
THERX
PR # %8 5 Working 7§
Service Type Day(s) Minutes

Bt £ | Annex |

PR 7 15 8 BERERE
(BRI RBEEN (EIRBEEN
AAt) Aot)
Performance Target Actual Performance
(% meeting service (% meeting service
standard) standard)

4. Rttt £ BAEFR
Supply of certified copies of land records
(a) & B
Over the counter
o T ERM
Land registers
o NERABE AT EREER R
Imaged copies without oversized 35
plans
o MEBABAMTRERER
Imaged copies with oversized plans
(b) ZEBH LR IE
Order via online services
(i) %5 H®
Collection in person
o i EGM
Land registers
o XEBREIEER
Imaged copies
- TEBKEA
Without oversized plans
- KrEmAEE
With oversized plans
(ii) B 5 3% B 8 3E 1 5] % B
Delivery by post or courier
o i EEM
Land registers
- TF6RAIAE
Orders placed before 6 pm
- TF6RERERMN
EHARARBEE
Orders placed after 6 pm or on 2
Saturdays, Sundays & public
holidays
o TEBABERNTEREEER
Imaged copies without oversized 3
plans
o MEBABAMTREREER
Imaged copies with oversized plans

35

(@)

(@)

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

100

100

100

100

99.9

99.8

100

100

100

100

5. HEEMBERR
Sale of Memorial Day Book (MDB)
(@) HETMAEAFNRE
Approval of MDB applications
b) ZEFMHEZAFERESR
Delivery of MDB data files

98

98

100

100
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B E EBER
R CERRBREN CEIRBZED
Service Standard Bl Bath)
TERXR Performance Target Actual Performance
PR % %8 Bl Working 78 (% meeting service (% meeting service
Service Type Day(s) Minutes standard) standard)
6. HERBEAMBEAR
Sale of Monthly Memorial Information
on Mortgage Transactions (MMIM)
@) HERBERBE A B ) o8 100
Approval of MMIM applications
(b) B 218 2 T4 B A A KRR . o8 100
Delivery of MMIM data files
7. EREHRK
Telephone enquiry services
(@) HAKRKIE S WE B 5184008
Voice mail left during office hours A E
Return calls within
40 minutes after 9% 08
receiving the voice
mail
(b) EM AT EKENE S T—EIEREL
Voice mall left after office hours 1065 AT B 8
Return calls before 94 100
10 am on the next
working day
8. BT ETMERN
Amendment of registered data
@ —REXRAREIMBEEHELE
T &)
Simple cases (i.e. Rectification of land 8 9% 100
registers based on Memorial information)
(b) EREEZE 10 93 99.8

Complicated cases

9. ABXNEMMP LM EREZM

Registration of withheld instruments 15 (a+b) 90 99.8

redelivered for registration

(@ MBI BRMAEIMOF EEMXER
BEESAMONERHEBLEL
it K
From receipt of a withheld instrument (@12
redelivered for registration to updating
the land register with the registered
instrument; and

b) TFEEBEFUEDTMAXE
EEREAL
Completion of imaging and return of the
registered instrument to the lodging party

(b)3
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R ES BRRE
R E%E (BRI RBEEN (EIRBEEN
Service Standard BO) Bath)
THERX Performance Target Actual Performance
PR % %8 5l Working 78 (% meeting service (% meeting service
Service Type Day(s) Minutes standard) standard)
10. XXV REERY
Owners’ corporation (OC) services
(a) 38 3 F 7 A E A2
Registration of OCs (S Note2) 25 % 100
(o) 2 64 3% £ 37 50K B A2 s @l A 30 %0 996
Supply of copies of OC records
NEBER BF g el el
Handling of suggestions/complaints FRFEOTRA
AE o MBTAL
EERMANFRIE
B ek Ts
[ & -
Replies to
suggestions or B _
complaints will be
sent within 10
calendar days of
their receipt. If this
is not possible, an
interim reply will be
sent within this
period.
1 TEEEREREET LM XE
Note 1: Excluding complicated cases and instruments withheld from registration
2 TEEERERSTEZREMINERAXMORE
Note 2: Excluding complicated cases and applications that require further supporting documents for processing
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(b) 2025/26 F E R & A& (A B B 5202554 A1 H )

PERFORMANCE PLEDGES 2025/26 (WITH EFFECT FROM 1 APRIL 2025)

R R

Service Standard

P 7% %8 5 TER D&
Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes

e % 18 12
(E 3 RBIZRLE
BOL)
Performance
Target (% meeting
service standard)

1. HE L M
Registration of land documents
(@ BRI NEERBEAMONEEN Lt
BRMBE LR
From receipt of an instrument to updating the (a) 11

land register with the registered instrument
(See Note 1); and

b) TFEEERFIEDEMAHXE XD
A
Completion of imaging and return of (b)3
the registered instrument to the lodging
par‘[y (See Note 1)

14 (a+b)

90

2. EEAUEMLHETH

Counter search of land registers 15

97

3 RELIHERFEREERE
Supply of imaged copies of land records
(a) EHE B
Over the counter
o RERB/KER
Without oversized plans
o fitiE@mAE A
With oversized plans
(b) EBH L FR%ATIE
Order via online services
(i) %5 EH
Collection in person
o NEEEEEER
Without coloured plans
o fitiEEAEE R
With coloured plans
o fitiEi@mAE A
With oversized plans
(ii) 8 &5 3¢} 124 72 7] 2% 3R
Delivery by post or courier
o NEHEBEDER
Without coloured plans
- TT6KRIFIHB
Orders placed before 6 pm
- THOREREEH N EHAR
NARBEE
Orders placed after 6 pm or on
Saturdays, Sundays & public holidays
o [fiEZEEEAR
With coloured plans
o fftiEiBAXE R
With oversized plans

15

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

97
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R %155
(32 2 fR B 15 2 1Y

Service Standard Bok)

AR % % 51 THERX

Performance

& Target (% meeting

Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes service standard)

4, Rttt L BRAFE
Supply of certified copies of land records
(a) ZHE L
Over the counter
o i &M
Land registers
o MEBANERINTEREER
Imaged copies without oversized plans
o MEBABAMTRERER
Imaged copies with oversized plans
(b) ZEBH L fRBATIE
Order via online services
(i) %5 ER
Collection in person
o T EFCM
Land registers
o ¥BREEAINR
Imaged copies
- TEBAEA
Without oversized plans
- KEmAEE
With oversized plans
(if) B & 5 7 12 72 7] 2% 3F
Delivery by post or courier
o T ERM
Land registers
- THeRaIRI B
Orders placed before 6 pm
- TFeREXEEH N  EHAERK
NRBREET B
Orders placed after 6 pm or on
Saturdays, Sundays & public holidays
o TEBRBAMTREEER
Imaged copies without oversized plans
o MEBABAMTREEER
Imaged copies with oversized plans

35 97

35 97

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

5. HEAMBERR
Sale of Memorial Day Book (MDB)
(@) BB M E BB AR
Approval of MDB applications
b) ZEFMHEZAFERESR
Delivery of MDB data files

98

98

6. HERBEMBEAR
Sale of Monthly Memorial Information on
Mortgage Transactions (MMIM)
() HBIRIBEMBE AEN B A
Approval of MMIM applications
b) ZEZBEIMBE AFENER
Delivery of MMIM data files

98

98
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BBiEE
PRS2 (E | RBIZLEN
Service Standard B
Performance
PR % %8 5l THEX o iE Target (% meeting
Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes service standard)
7. EREARE
Telephone enquiry services
(@) MARRKINES WEBE®IODENLE
Voice mail left during office hours Return calls within 40 minutes 94
after receiving the voice mail
(b) EMAFRWEE S T—EIEXRE L10KAEE
Voice mail left after office hours Return calls before 10 am on 94
the next working day
8. BT LHBRMEH
Amendment of registered data
(@) —RERGIREIMBZEENE E L BLM)
Simple Cases (i.e. Rectification of land registers 3 94
based on Memorial information)
(b) E B R 9514
10 (See Note 4)

Complicated Cases

9. ABXNEMMP LM EREZMR
Registration of withheld instruments 15 (a+b) 90
redelivered for registration

(@ MBI BRAEIMOP EEMXEZRED T
My EE BB LB AR
From receipt of a withheld instrument redelivered (@12
for registration to updating the land register with
the registered instrument; and

()f& g R IR T B X R

(b) 3
Completion of imaging and return of the
registered instrument to the lodging party
10.¥FTVURZEERE
Owners’ corporation (OC) services
(@) WFER % £ 37 SO£ M 2 00 (i3 97 124
Registration Of OCS (See Note 2) (See Note 3) (See Note 4)
(b) 24 2 3 7 ROR B 8B A 0 %
Supply of copies of OC records
NEEBER RF Aeagrhilz ﬂxpﬁéé’g
Handling of suggestions/complaints TRAEE -0 % A BEE B
REANFEIEE theH T
pACE
Replies to suggestions or 3
complaints will be sent within
10 calendar days of their
receipt. If this is not possible,
an interim reply will be sent
within this period.
G TEREERERREREFHOXE
Note 1: Excluding complicated cases and instruments withheld from registration
FE2 - TEREERERNEZREN MBAMNRF
Note 2: Excluding complicated cases and applications that require further supporting documents for processing
R IR T B IR IS IR %
Note 3: Enhanced service standard
4 KIRA R RS 5 1E
Note 4: Enhanced performance target
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(@) 2024/25 FE+HFAMEBRSEREZEESEE
MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND REGISTRY JOINT STANDING
COMMITTEE 2024/25

¥ & Chairperson

TH MR BHEEL T Ms Joyce TAM Wai-yee

The Land Registry

% & Members

TR TRELAE Mr PANG Ka-fai

The Land Registry (B 22025 14) (Until January 2025)
REMT LT Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han
(£ HE A2025% 1) (With effect from January 2025)
BB Ms Christina CHOI Hang-suen
(B Z20244F 4 7) (Until April 2024)
TEELEE Mr Eric LEE Tak-wai
(XM HE AZ2024F 4 4) (With effect from April 2024)
BRE R H T Ms Javy CHAN Chiu-ling

BREEME SRET L+ Ms Debbie CHEUNG Fong

The Law Society of Hong Kong AR+ Ms Emily LAM Yuet-ming
BmkERZ L Ms Sylvia SIU Wing-yee
BEMNTE Mr Terry YEUNG Po-lam

# & Secretary

TR REM I+ Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han

The Land Registry (B Z2025%F14) (Until January 2025)
Tt Ms Eva LAU Siu-man

(E34 HE Z2025%1H) (With effect from January 2025)
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(b) 2024/25F E+ FMEFEFB & N E (RERB)ESR

MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND REGISTRY CUSTOMER LIAISON
GROUP (PRIVATE SECTOR) 2024/25

X & Chairperson
T s R
The Land Registry

% B Members
BEAGHAE

Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants

EEMERERNES
Hong Kong Real Estate Agencies
General Association

EEMEREBERHEAERALA
Society of Hong Kong Real Estate
Agents Limited

BERRITLE
The Hong Kong Association of
Banks

BERNEMES
The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors

TmELLE

(B Z=2025F14)
REWWL L

(£ HEZ2025F18)

PR 4 % S A&

(Bt 22025 1H)
APTRE Ro

(L£x4 H A Z2025F2 H)
2 7] %k A&

=ERBELE

(Bt 22025 14)

(£ HEB2025F2 H)

B B 0 42+

(B ZE20247 7)
EiEBLEA

(£ H A AZ2024F7 H)

20 5 A&

(Bt 22025 1H)
FERELE

(£ HEA2025F2 H)

PROEE 22 £

(B ZE2025F14)
N

(£ HEBZ2025F2 H)
BRESE

7K 3 2 £

(Bt 22025 1H)
252 L+

(£ H R A2025F2 H)
TRELEE

&8+ #h 5 5 % ¥ & € THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG

Mr PANG Ka-fai

(Until January 2025)

Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han
(With effect from January 2025)

Mr Alan CHAN Wai-hon

(Until January 2025)

Ms TANG Yuen-yee, Loren Gertrud
(With effect from February 2025)
Mr lvan LAU Ho-kit

Hon Edmund WONG Chun-sek
(Until January 2025)

Mr Parco WU Chun-sing

(With effect from February 2025)

Ms SZE Ming-yu

(Until July 2024)

Mr POON Tat-hang

(With effect from July 2024)

Mr Anthony KWOK Chong

(Until January 2025)

Mr Nick WONG Ying-wai

(With effect from February 2025)

Ms Alieza CHAN

(Until January 2025)

Mr Robert LAM Chun-wing
(With effect from February 2025)
Mr Eric CHUNG Ou-wa

Ms HAU Wing-shuen

(Until January 2025)

Ms Jessica LEUNG Pui-yee
(With effect from February 2025)
Mr Paul LI Man-hong



+ b EE
The Land Registry

EHREE
The Law Society of Hong Kong

& Secretary

4 3 5 il B
The Land Registry

R 4L T+
ERBYrL
R 2

(B, Z2024 11 H)
HEZmEALt

B 4 11l Annex Il

Ms Javy CHAN Chiu-ling

Ms Emily FOK Wai-kan

Mrs Cindy LAM TSE Shuk-yee
(Until November 2024)

Miss Cynthia TANG Wai-wing

(ZEXX H B 520244 11 A) (With effect from November 2024)

A bEL L

REMT I

(Bt 2025 1H)
BHEXLZ T

BIRE LA

EER AL

BEEY Lt

B

(B, Z2024E12.7)
EREHLZLT

(£ E A AZ2025F1H)
RiE#ELE

(Bt Z20247 1)
TEF L
(EMH R E2024F7 H)
PR S o A
(LEXH B B2025F 1 H)

BREZELZL

(Bt 22025 1H)
BENTE

(£ H A A2025F2 H)
5L A

8 B 9% S

REBLAE

2rELEE

J& 490 4 22 £

Ms Eva LAU Siu-man

Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han
(Until January 2025)

Ms Delphine MA Sau-man

Mr Andrew MAK Chun-wai

Mr Kenneth POON Fai-yiu

Ms Ella TSOI Sau-man

Mr Francis WAN

(Until December 2024)

Ms Carmen WONG Ka-man
(With effect from January 2025)
Mr Isaac YUEN Wai-chuen
(Until July 2024)

Ms Evian WONG Wai-fong
(With effect from July 2024)

Mr Benson CHAN Man-chung
(With effect from January 2025)

Ms AU Kin-man

(Until January 2025)

Mr CHUNG Che-kwong

(With effect from February 2025)
Mr Alson CHAI

Mr Tommy CHUNG Kwok-keung
Mr LEONG Chi-wai

Mr Charlie LEUNG Chi-yin

Mr Courtney LEUNG Tsz-hang

Miss Cherie CHOW Yuen-shan
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(c) 2024/25F E+ FMEFEFBME NE(RERB)ESR

MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND REGISTRY CUSTOMER LIAISON

GROUP (PUBLIC SECTOR) 2024/25

X & Chairperson
T s R
The Land Registry

% B Members
BEBAEERE
Agriculture, Fisheries and
Conservation Department

BETE
Buildings Department

BB EH

Customs and Excise Department
B A

Department of Justice
REREES

Environmental Protection
Department

N1
Fire Services Department
RYIRRRER4EE

Food and Environmental
Hygiene Department

BFEXE

Government Property Agency

REREHEE

Home Affairs Department

EEEEME
Hong Kong Housing Society

BFBERR

Hong Kong Police Force

FEZ
Housing Department

TRERE

(B E2025E1 1)

REM L

(A3 H B 5202541 4)

BRE ML

RAR L

2R+

RIEHZ L
BRAME ST A&

bt ok

8
Py
H H

Tl clit
Wt 5

REFELEE

FERL

REBRL L

=gkt

EREX L

EOTERE
BRIAA £
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Mr PANG Ka-fai

(Until January 2025)

Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han
(With effect from January 2025)

Ms CHAN Po-lam

Mr Eddie CHOY Lap-shing

Mr CHEUNG Tai-on

Miss Ceci HO Kin-ying

Miss YEE Nga-wai

Mr CHAN Tai-fai

Mr NG Siu-keung

Miss IP Wai-ting
Miss LAU Lai-fun

Mr King CHAN Tsz-yin

Ms Jessica LEE Ching

Ms Fanny CHAN Lai-kuen

Mr Kelvin LAU Cheuk-fung

Ms Clarice LO Kit-ying

Mr Aaron CHOI
Ms Vanessa TAN Yuet-ling



BREAE
Independent Commission
Against Corruption

BB

Inland Revenue Department

K 42 F
Lands Department

EREDE
Legal Aid Department

WEEREE
Official Receiver’s Office

REIZE

Planning Department

EMEMLES
Rating and Valuation
Department

HERHE

Social Welfare Department

4 5 R
The Land Registry
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